Exhibit 1

Ramon O Caldas Pagan </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE

. GROUP
From: oy DIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8DAA 1A3799E 14154902472F 15C80E 198-

RAMON O CAL>
Sent:  Tuesday, September 19, 2017 9:41 PM

To:  Andy Techmanski [

Ce: Ricardo L. Ramos Rodriguez ; Pedro Morales Gonzalez
; Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarado
; GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ
: JAVIER MORALES TANON

b4

Nelson Morales Rivera

Subject: RE: Power Line Storm Restoration

Hello, Andy,

Thank you so much for the information. In order to start the evaluation and contracting process we need the following information:

1) A formal proposal that includes:
a) Personnel hourly rates
b) Staff hourly rates (engineers, PM, Team Leader)
¢) Equipment daily/weekly/monthly rates
d) Perdiem
e) Other special rates
2) What is the ETA in PR if we mobilize next Friday (How fast and how many days in advance do you need to move your people
from the US to PR)
3) What limitations your personal or your company have
4) What trainings your personal have for the different jobs and roles
5) The vehicles are 4X4
6) Your personal have experience working off road on remote sites
7) Do you have bilingual (Spanish/English) personnel?
8) What other terms and conditions your company has?
9) Is your personnel willing to be accommodated in double occupancy rooms?

These are some of our questions in order to see and evaluate how your services and capabilities are aligned with the different types
of works we have to perform.

If you have any questions, let us know.
Best regards and thank you so much for your support,

RC

From: Andy Techmanski

Sent: Monday, September 18, 2017 8:48 PM
To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Subject: Power Line Storm Restoration

Ramon,

Per you linkedin email below is our capabilities and resources available.

Workforce:

125 Men in crews consisting of power lineman, equipment operators, and apprentices. All crew members are accredited
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through the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers {(IBEW) union.

We also have 15 construction/project managers, and engineers that could mobilize to assist.

Equipment:

35 Distribution Bucket Trucks
10 Service Bucket Trucks
35 Distribution Digger Derricks (Pole Setting)

10 Transmission Bucket Trucks (90" - 125)
5 Transmission Digger Derricks
10 Boom Trucks {30 ton+/-) with man baskets

4 Distribution conductor pulling sets {6k Ib pullers, tensioners, reel trailers)
2 Transmission Line pulling sets {20k Ib pullers, tensioners, reel trailers)
1 Live line Transmission Set {(hot sticks, barehand, etc)

Exhibit 1

if we use dedicated ships and barges to mobilize, we could also bring a large stock of materials, poles, transformers, and

conductor {wire, insulators, etc), with us to help supplement your depleting stock.

Our company has experience in building power lines and substations up to 500kv. We also have ample live line
experience from 600v - 345kv. We have rubber gloves, sleeves and hot sticks to match any need you may have.

| could mobilize a forward team of 10 - 30 lineman and construction managers to start helping you package work ASAP.

Our transformer partner could start to ship transformers as soon as this week, in any voltage configuration. {obviously

larger transformers will take more time).
Regards,

Andy Techmanski

CEQ

Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

Mobile:
www.whitefishenergy.com
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Exhibit 2

From: Andy Techmanski <andy .techmanski@whitefishenergy.com>
Sent: Sunday, September 24, 2017 2:15 AM
To:  Ramon O Caldas Pogon

Ce: Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarado
Rivera

: Nelson Morales
- GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ

- JAVIER MORALES TANON
> EDGARDO DIAZ REYES
. AIDA URBINA RIVAS [}

Subject: Re: Power Line Storm Restoration

Ramon,

When we initially fly down in the next 24-36 hours will you have hotel accommodations setup
for us? If so will there be electricity and running water? Just trying to see what we need to do to
prepare. Do you or your families need anything ( generators, water, food, etc) for us to bring to
help them?

Regards,

Andy Techmanski
Sent from my iPhone

On Sep 23, 2017, at 7:53 PM, Ramon O Caldas Pagan_

wrote:

Hello Andy,

Today, we had a meeting and now we are ready for the mobilization. To do this, we need to know when is
the soonesr date you can biring vour people to PR?

We only need the final Scope of Services (5038) that your company will provide us, to prepare the electronic
contract and send it to you, |include our standard T&C s for vour svaluation and comments.

Also, we have 60 rooms at Verdanza hotel reserve to accommaodate your first wave We need to know what
are your needs to transport your equipment as soon as possible. We already have alr transportation pre-
approved by FEMA for the most critical pieces of equipment. To complete the logistic plan we need to
kriow all the technical info to be provided to the alr cargo transporter and FEMA.

Best regards,

R

From: Andy Techmanski

Sent: Saturday, September 23, 2017 9:04 PM

To: Ramon © Caldas Pagan

Cc: Ricardo L. Ramos Rodriguez; Pedro Morales Gonzalez; Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarado; Nelson Morales
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Exhibit 2
Rivera; GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ; JAVIER MORALES TANON
Subject: Re: Power Line Storm Restoration

Ramon,

Can you provide an update to your needs of power restoration? We have 50+ labor that have now
been release for hurricane work from Florida Power and Light. These guys are in Miami. My
concern 1s that we start to demobilize our of Florida and the cost to mobilize back will start to
increase.

Regards,

Andy Techmanski
Sent from my iPhone

On Sep 19, 2017, at 7:41 PM, Ramon O Caldas Pagan ||| N NG

wrote:
Hello, Andy,

Thank you so much for the information. In order to start the evaluation and
contracting process we need the following information:

1) A formal proposal that includes:
a) Personnel hourly rates
b) Staff hourly rates (engineers, PM, Team Leader)
¢) Equipment daily/weekly/monthly rates
d) Perdiem
e) Other special rates
2) What is the ETA in PR if we mobilize next Friday (How fast and how many days in
advance do you need to move your people from the US to PR)
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

These are some of our questions in order to see and evaluate how your services and
capabilities are aligned with the different types of works we have to perform.

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

125 Men in crews consisting of power lineman, equipment operators, and apprentices.
All crew members are accredited through the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers (IBEW) union.

We also have 15 construction/project managers, and engineers that could mobilize to
assist.

Equipment:

35 Distribution Bucket Trucks
10 Service Bucket Trucks

35 Distribution Digger Derricks (Pole Setting)

10 Transmission Bucket Trucks (90' - 125"
5 Transmission Digger Derricks

10 Boom Trucks (30 ton+/-) with man baskets

4 Distribution conductor pulling sets (6k Ib pullers, tensioners, reel trailers)
2 Transmission Line pulling sets (20k 1b pullers, tensioners, reel trailers)

1 Live line Transmission Set (hot sticks, barehand, etc)

If we use dedicated ships and barges to mobilize, we could also bring a large stock of
materials, poles, transformers, and conductor (wire, insulators, etc), with us to help
supplement your depleting stock.

Our company has experience in building power lines and substations up to 500kv. We
also have ample live line experience from 600v - 345kv. We have rubber gloves,
sleeves and hot sticks to match any need you may have.
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Exhibit 2

I could mobilize a forward team of 10 - 30 lineman and construction managers to start
helping you package work ASAP.

Our transformer partner could start to ship transformers as soon as this week, in any
voltage configuration. (obviously larger transformers will take more time).

Regards,
Andy Techmanski

CEO

Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

Mobile:

www. whitefishenergy. com<hitp.//www.whitelishenergv.com>
[1472612757304 WEH]

<OutlookEmoji-1472612757304 WEH2b04912b-d2d5-4423-85bb-98c13afc8adb jpg>
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Exhibit 3

Ramon O Caldas Pagan [ EENRNEGEGG
From: e
]
Sent: Sunday, October 1, 2017 9:02 AM

To: Mireya Rodriguez Fernandez ||| GG O
Valentin Roman [

Cc: Ricardo L. Ramos Rodriguez ||| | R G- /RDO
TARGA BENITEZ . - (:odo L. Rivera
Alvarado [

Subject: Informacién WhiteFish Energy Holding

Hola Mireya,
Estos son los correos que recibimos ayer y sobre los cuales estamos trabajando la estrategia para traer el personal.
Saludos,

RC

Skakskokskosk skokskok sk ok Sk sk sk sk ok sk skokeskoke sk ke skook sk sk skesk sk sk sk ok Sk ke sk skok sk skokesk ok sk sk sk Kok sk ok ok ek sk sk sk skok sk ke sk sk ke sk ek sk sk ki ok sk ok sk sk ok sk sk sk skok skokesk sk skeskokeskok ok skk

Ramon,

{ just got off the phone with Mike Hyland the mutusl aid coordinator with APFA. | emphasized the need to assist you with what ever
resources he can. [ told him we are having problems with logistics and need the govemnments support to expedite the mobilization fo
PR He has setup a call with Frank Ford who is a Colonel in the Army for of engingers and will be coming fo PR in coming days to
execule the relief effort for them. 1 told Mike that we need frank to use military barges, ships and air transport to gst us there quicker. |
also said that we could use the army to set up a tent city for us. This would gllow me to expedite sending us as many as 1000 lineman
to assist your rebuild. Once [ talk to the Army tomorrow | will report back {o you .

Regards,

Andy Techmanski
Sent from my iPhons

Ramoaon,

We will get you the generator ond other items, no problem. As for as schedule, please see the below overview.

Mobilization Schedule:

Monday 10/2: Forward Management team to arrive with 7 managers

Tuesday 10/3: Forward Management team to arrive with 2 managers

Tuesday 10/3: First Fuel, Water, Food, and support materials Arrive in PR

Tuesday 10/3: Load Ship in Jacksonville FL with 30 pieces of power line equipment to PR

Wednesday 10/4:
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Exhibit 3
Thursday10/5 First 30 Lineman Arrive in PR

Friday 10/6: First load of power line equipment to arrive in PR (5-8 pieces)
10/6: 12 Men to PR

Saturday 10/7: Second Load of Power Line Equipment to Arrive in PR {4 pieces)
10/7: 12 Men to PR

Sunday 10/8: Third Load of Power Line Equipment to Arrive in PR (4 pieces)
Sunday 10/9: 42 Lineman Arrive to PR

Menday 10/9 Fourth Load of Power Line Equipment to Arrive in PR (4 Pieces)

10/10: 5th Air shipment of 4 pieces of eguipment.

10/10: 12 lineman to PR

We will be able to ramp up ta 100 men per week moving forward. The prablem is the bottlenecks at port and girports are causing us to not be able
to send more people quickly. We are going to find some solutions ta get you more guys quicker.

Regards,
Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

Mobite: I

www, whitefishenergv.com
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Exhibit 4

Ramon O Caldas Pagan
From:

Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2017 1:40 AM

To: Ivelisse Sanchez Soultaire—
Ce: Delis Tamara Zambrana Colon_

Subject: PRESENTATION FOR THE BOARD REFERENDUM
Attach: Hurricane Maria Contracting Process.pdf
Hola Ivelisse,

Aqui te incluyo una presentacion con la informacién para el board.
Cualguier duda me dejas saber.

Saludos,

R
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Exhibit 4

PREPA0001483 Translation:

Hello Ivelisse,

Here | have included a presentation with the information for the board.
If you have any questions, please let me know.

Greetings,

R



Presented By: Ramén Caldas
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» An RFI from August 18- 24 to select First Responders
for Electrical Grid Emergency Repairs published in
Power Advocate. Only local companies from Puerto
Rico submitted proposals

» 72 Hours before hurricane Maria hits the island,
PREPA began to request proposals from US mainland
based companies




9811000Vd3dd

13 companies were contacted for multiple
among them:

* Boufort Tree Company

* PowerSecure/Southern Company

*  Whitefish Energy Holdings

« State Electric Corporation

 B&B Electrical & Utility Contractors

* Southern Electric Corporation of Mississippi
* Expeditioner Global Logistics (XGL)

* Prime Air Corp Logistics Company

* Burns & McDonnell's
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» No power

» No telephone (Mobile or Landline)

» Closed roads by debris and flooding

» No computer, internet or any other
communication device

» Limited fuel supply




8811000Vd3dd

Goal was to select one or more companies to supply
more than 800 crews for Transmission & Distribution
with capability for immediate mobilization

Select one company specialized in Transmission
(dead/live) repairs on remote and difficult places
Self-sourcing materials and related logistics
Demonstrated capabilities to supply specialized and
regular fleet and provide lodging for contractors, as
well as fuel supply
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» First mainland company that arrived to the island
start the electric grid damage assessment and
demonstrated ability to move forward in the swiftest
manner possible

» Specializes in working on mountainous and difficult
locations

» Requested a $3.2MM mobilization payment, while
other companies requested $5MM mobilization
payment and $20MM deposit
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Whitefish’s leadership and field management teams have proven trac
records and experience to execute on the most challenging projects.
Extensive subcontractor relationships enable it to address projects at any
scale while minimizing overhead and passing cost savings through to the
client.

Established in 2015, Whitefish is led by industry veteran Andy Techmanski
who is a trained journeyman lineman with over 22 years of experience
completing critical utility infrastructure projects worldwide. Techmanski is
a power line executive with over 22 years of critical utility infrastructure
experience. Techmanski is supported by a construction management team
with decades of experience navigating mountainous terrain and difficult
construction scenarios.

Whitefish is backed by HBC Investments (HBC) and Flat Creek Capital (FCC),
both based in Dallas, TX, and Comtrafo Transformers, based in Brazil.
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» Recent Engagements

» Pinnacle Peak-Rogers (AZ): Hired by the Western Area Power
Administration (WAPA / US Department of Energy) to install 230kv
transmission line, direct embedded double-circuit steel pole structure,
and conductor and overhead ground wire. Whitefish completed the
project on budget and 52 days ahead of schedule.

» Slide Ridge Overhead Power Rebuild (WA): Hired by PUD No.1 of Chelan
County to rebuild distribution line climbing 5,000 feet of elevation which
was destroyed by forest fire. Due to the extreme terrain and conditions,
helicopters were required to perform the work




€611000Vd3dd

» Master Service Agreement (Blanket Contract), w
is currently being amended for consistency with
FEMA requirements

» Each line, feeder or segment of line will have a
unique Contract Release

» Each release will have a detailed Scope of Work
(SOW), budget and due date; in compliance with
FEMA requirements.




¥611000Vd3dd

Total amount of the contract will depend on the total amoun
contract releases. At this moment it is not possible to offer a full
estimate because the scope of work is dynamic due to the fragility and
precarious condition of the grid. All power grid was subject to over-
design mechanical stress, which caused significant hidden fractures
and failures.

PREPA paid a $3.2MM emergency mobilization payment and has
received an additional emergency mobilization payment invoice for
$4.3MM. In total, Whitefish has mobilized ~300 linemen to date.
Initial estimates for the first 160 days of work amount to
approximately $250-320MM. PREPA is working on and expects to
receive FEMA advances and reimbursements to cover the costs related
to the works performed by Whitefish.




Exhibit 5

s vy rovriguez orrec [

From:

Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2017 6:01 PM

To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan [

Ce: Nelson Morales Rivera : Luis M Morales Tafion

Subject: RE: Whitefish Contract Amendment 1, signed

Buenas tardes Ramon:

El contrato del asunto u otro contrato relacionade nunca fue evaluado por la Oficina de Administracion de Riesgos. Tampoco
hemos recibido los certificados de seguros requeridos mediante este contrato para la evaluacién correspondiente. Estamos
consciente de la urgencia de los trabajos a realizar, no obstante, los riesgos asociados al alcance de estos trabajos son muy
altos. En futuras instancias es recomendable que establezcamos una comunicacion directa y efectiva para agilizar evaluaciones
de esta envergadura.

Siempre hemos estado disponibles para atender todo asunto en que nuestra Oficina pueda aportar.

Debo sefialar que el alcance de los trabajos de Whitefish no establece claramente si trabajaran en la restauracion de la fibra
Gptica que discurre por el cable de ground de las lineas. Te agradezco nos aclares este punto debido a gue en nuestro reclamo a

los aseguradores, la fibra dptica es propiedad asegurada y demarca el paso critico de nuestro reclamo de Business Interruption.
Saludos cordiales, SLRO

From: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2017 3:33 PM

To: SAMMY RODRIGUEZ ORTEGA

Cc: Nelson Morales Rivera

Subject: FW: Whitefish Contract Amendment 1, signed

Saludos,

Segun solicitade por Nelson Morales, referimas of contrato de referencia para su informacidn/accidn correspondients,

Buenas tardes!

Tamara

From: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 11:56 AM

To: José A. Roque Torres

Cc: Nelson Morales Rivera

Subject: Whitefish Contract Amendment 1, signed
Saludos,

Favor de ver el anejo para el documento de referencia.
De requerir informacion adicional, no dude en solicitarla.

Buen dia!

Tamara

PREPAO001956



Exhibit 5

PREPA0001956 Translation:

Good Afternoon Ramon:

The contract in question or another related contract was never evaluated by the Office of Risk Management.
We also haven'’t received the proof of insurance required by this contract for the corresponding evaluation.
We are conscious of the urgency of the work to be done, however, there are high risks associated with the
scope of this work.

In the future we recommend establishing direct and effective communication to speed up evaluations of this
scope.

We have always been available to attend to any matter in which our Office can contribute.

[ should point out that the scope of Whitefish's work does not clearly establish whether they will work on the
restoration fiber optic that runs through the ground cable of the lines. I thank you for clarifying this point
because in our claim to the insurers, the fiber optic is insured property and demarcates the critical step of our

Business Interruption claim.

Best regards, SLRO



Exhibit 6

GOVERNMENT OF PUERTO RICO
PUERTO RICO ELECTRIC POWER AUTHORITY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO EMERGENCY MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR
PREPA’S ELECTRICAL GRID REPAIRS - HURRICANE MARIA

APPEAR

AS FIRST PARTY: The Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREPA), a public
corporation and government instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico,
created by Act 83 of May 2, 1941, as amended, represented in this act by its Executive
Director, Ricardo Luis Ramos Rodriguez, of legal age, married, engineer and resident of

Caguas, Puerto Rico.

AS SECOND PARTY: Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC (Whitefish) a partnership
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Montana, United States of America,
with a place of business at 144 Aspen Ridge Way, Whitefish, MT 59937.' herein
represented by Andy Techmanski, of legal age, married, and a resident of Montana,
hereinafter referred to collectively as “ the Contractor”) whose authority of representation

is evidenced by corporate resolution.

WITNESSETH

In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter stated, the Parties agree

themselves, their personal representatives, and successors as follows:
STATEWHEREAS: The appearing parties executed the Emergency Master Service
Agreement for PREPA'S Electrical Grid Reconstruction {Corporate)-Hurricane Maria
(Agreement) on September 26, 2017. According to the terms and conditions of the
Agreement the Contractor will provide PREPA labor, supervision, tools and equipment
necessary to perform transmission and distribution power grid reconstruction; from 600V
to 230 V; aerial underground; at the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority. All in strict
accordance with the provisions of this contract and contractor's emergency proposals
submitted by email, including but not limited to those listed in schedule .

4828-7788-4753 1
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Terms and Conditions Exhibit 6

Emergency Contract for PREPA's EJ i
eyl ectrical Grid Reconstruction

WHEREAS: The PREPA's Governing Board ratified the execution of the Agreement

between PREPA and the Contractor through the Resolution , dated October 17
2017, |

WHEREAS: According to the original terms of the Agreement PREPA disbursed the
amount of $3,700,000 for mobilization of personnel and equipment. The Agreement did
not inclqde the maximum amount to be paid. However, as authorized by PREPA's
Governiqg Board Resolution, the parties agree to amend and supersede the Agreement
dated September 26, 2017 to comply with the Federal Emergency Management
Administration (FEMA) for the emergency repairs of the electrical infrastructure under the
following:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ARTICLE 1: Scope of Contract

The Contractor shall provide labor, supervision, tools, and equipment necessary to
perform transmission and distribution power grid reconstruction; from 600V to 230KV;
aerial and underground; at the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority, hereafter referred to
as PREPA power grid. All in strict accordance with the provisions of this contract and
contractor's emergency proposals submitted by email, including but not limited to those
lisced on Schedule |. PREPA will sign one Contract Release for each line, feeder or
segment project. The terms and conditions stated in this Contract will govern on any
Contract Release all in accordance and compliance with FEMA guidelines and

regulations.
ARTICLE 2: Definitions

Whenever the words defined in this article or pronouns used instead are mentioned in
this Contract, they shall have the meanings here given:

1) Engineer - shall mean the Transmission and Distribution Director of PREPA, acting
directly or through his properly authorized representatives.

2) Contracting Officer - shall mean the Chief of Supply Chain Division and Contracting
Officer of PREPA, acting directly or through his properly authorized representatives.

4828-7768-4753 1
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Terms and Conditions Exhibit 6

Emergency Contract for PREPA’s Electrical Grid Reconstruction
Page 3 of 34

3) Contract - shall mean collectively, all the covenants, terms. and sti
! ' , ' ulations in these
articles of agreement, whlqh constitute an amendment and supersdzs to that contract
gntered ltnttrz1 byt the;t pimes on September 26, 2017, and in all supplementary
occuments hereto attached which constitute essential parts of the Contrac
hereby made part thereof, to wit: d tand are

- Contract

- Direct WEH Rate Schedule dated 10/17/2017 (Exhibit A)

- Subcontractor Rate Schedule dated 10/17/2017 (Exhibit B)
- Contract Release

- Performance, and Payment Bonds

4) Change order - A written agreement between the parties that sets out changes in
price, time, or scope of work to the Contract, which has been approved by the
appropriate officlal pursuant to the general authorization for approval.

5) Contract Release — A purchase order created' with reference to this contract, the
contract release documentation (order date, quantity, value, number of the contract
release order, account number, among others) is included as part of each release.

ARTICLE 3: Consideration

In accordance with the terms and conditions contained herein, PREPA agrees to pay and
the Contractor accepts that PREPA will make payment for the work performed on a Time
and Materials basis at the rates set forth in Schedule 1, as supplemented from time to
time by additional subcontractors. As compensation for services rendered under this
Contract, PREPA and the Contractor agree that the total amount to be paid under this
Contract shall not exceed $300,000,000 (the Contract Amount). All payments shall be
made after the approval of the Contract Release. v

PREPA will only pay for Services already rendered before the submitted invoice date.
PREPA will not be required to make advance payments for any future service to be
rendered by Contractor under the Contract, except for those services related to the initial
- mobilization and final demobilization. Contractor shall submit weekly invoices which will
include a description of the services rendered as per established in the SOW and the
contractor's proposal. Each invoice shall be itemized and must be duly certified by an
authorized representative of the Contractor. '

PREPA will approve invoices within seven (7) calendar days, from time of receipt from
contractors’ initial submission. PREPA will review the invoices and if they are in
compliance with the requirements set forth in the Contract, PREPA will proceed with
payment within three (3) calendar days of the approval of invoice. Payment is due upon
approval of a valid invoice. In any event, payment terms to contractor shall not exceed
Net 10 Days from date of submission of invoice by contractor to PREPA. A finance charge

4828-7788-4753 1 ;
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Exhibit 6
Terms and Conditions EXAIDIED

Emergency Contract for PREPA’s Electrical Grid Reconstruction
Page 4 of 34 '

of 1% per month shall be due on payments received after the date due pursuant to the
schedule described above.

All invoices submitted by the Contractor shall include the following Certification in order
to proceed with its payment.

- No Interest Céﬂiﬁcation:

Under penalty of absolute nullity, | hereby certify that no employee, official or director of
PREPA is a party or has been granted any interest or payment by Consultant in the profits
or benefits to be obtained under this Contract by Consultant or if any employee, official
or director of PREPA has any interest In the profits or benefits under this Contract a waiver
has been previously obtained. |, also certify that the only consideration to provide the
services under this Contract to Consultant is the payment agreed with PREPA's
authorized representative. The total amount of this invoice is fair and correct. The
services were provided and no payment has been received for said concept.

Contractor's Signature”

This is an essential requirement and those invoices without this Certification will not be
processed for payment. In order to comply with the certification requirements set forth
above, Contractor shall require that subcontractors providing Services also make the
certification set forth above in any invoices submitted in connection with the Services.

All invoices have to be sent to the following address:
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority,
Accounts Payable Section,

PO Box 70253,
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00936-0253

ARTICLE 4: Commencement and Completion of Work
4.1 Inspection and Delivery

Unless mutually agreed, all works shall be.completed as per schedule of proposed
progress from the commencement date as established per Contract Release for all
work to be performed. The commencement date will be the beginning date stated on

the letter of mobilization.

4.2 Schedule of Proposed Progress

426-7788-4753 1
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Exhibit 6

Terms and Conditions
Emergency Contract for PREPA’s Electrical Grid Reconstruction

Page 5 of 34 .

Contractor will use commercially reasonable efforts to perform the work in such a
manner to meet PREPA's scheduling expectations, but PREPA waives any claim
against Contractor related to delayed completion of the work.

4.3 Contract Term

This Contract shall be in effect for a period of twelve months beginning on the date on
which parties sign the Contract (the “Original Term”.). PREPA may extend the Original
Term for additional periods of twelve (12) months by written amendment between the

parties.

ARTICLE 5: Suspension of Work

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

PREPA may, at any time, suspend the whole or any portion of the work under this
Service Contract Order, by providing Contractor with a written notice stating the
reasons for suspension at least five (5) days in advance of the day the suspension
shall take effect. The right of PREPA to suspend the work shall not be construed
as denying the Contractor all actual, reasonable and necessary costs and
expenses due to the delays caused by such suspension.

Either Party may suspend the whole or any portion of the work under this Order by
reason of the occurrence of a Force Majeure event as described in Article 10
herein.

In case of suspension of the work by PREPA for any reason, or in case the work
is suspended in whole or in part due to the occurrence of a Force Majeure event,
Contractor's obligations shall be extended for a period of time reasonably
necessary to overcome the effects of any such suspension. Contractor will also
have the right to claim lost revenue standing time of manpower and equipment,

“and overhead costs.

If the suspension extends for more than fifteen (15) days, the Contractor shall have
the right to an equitable adjustment to the amounts payable to Contractor and the
Contract shall be modified in writing accordingly. If a suspension extends beyond
thirty (30) days, Contractor has the right to terminate this contract.

ARTICLE 6: Methods and Data

PREPA reserves the right to review and approve all methods and data, which the
Contractor develops hereunder. Such review or approval shall in no way relieve the
Contractor from its responsibilities, obligations or liabilities under this Contract.
The Contractor shall obtain such reviews or approval in writing from PREPA.

- The Contractor shall keep at the working area a copy of the Contract and its

supplementary documents at all times, give the Engineer access thereto.
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ARTICLE 7: Changes and/or Extra Work

PREPA may, at any time, by written order, make changes in the Services or work to be
performed within the general scope of this Contract. These works assignment shall be
agreed between Contractor and PREPA. The approval of this extra work is subject to
PREPA's Project Manager. The Contractor shall work with PREPA to supply Emergency
Crews for this purpose. Those Crews shall be independent of the Circuit Crews assigned
to the scheduled circuit. All contractual specifications shall apply. If such changes cause
an increase or decrease in Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any
services under this Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made and this Contract
shall be modified in writing accordingly. Provided, however, that no changes shall be
made to the scope of the Services that would render the costs incurred in the performance
of this Contract unallowable or not allocable under, or outside the scope or not reasonable
for the completion of, Federal grant awards from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency ("FEMA”) or any other U.S. Federal agency.

ARTICLE 7A: Payment

Payment shall be Time and Materials at the rates set forth in the attached schedule of
rates. Payment for work performed under the Contract shall not exceed the ceiling price
specified in the attached schedule of rates. PREPA shall have no obligation to pay the
Contractor any amounts in excess of the Contract ceiling price. The Contractor shall not
be obligated to continue performance if to do so would exceed the ceiling price specified
in the attached schedule of rates, unless and until PREPA notifies the Contractor in writing
that the ceiling price has been increased and specifies in the notice a revised ceiling that
shall constitute the ceiling price for performance under this Contract. When and to the
extent that the ceiling price set forth in the attached schedule of rates has been increased,
any hours expended and material costs incurred by Contractor in excess of the ceiling
price before the increase shall be allowable to the same extent as if the hours expended
and material costs had been incurred after the increase in-the ceiling price.

ARTICLE 8: Inspection

During the progress of work, the Engineer or its authorized representatives shail make
daily inspections to evaluate all assigned works as established and acceptied by PREPA
to ensure Contractor compliance with the power line specifications. All jobs shall be
executed, performed and built in full compliance with PREPA's Electrical Codes and any
other special requirement established previous the commencement of works.

Job sites shall be marked with cones and signs visible from the nearest road to identify
crew location.

All work performed by the Contractor is subject to inspection and approval by PREPA.
PREPA to clearing identify and provide the required specification prior to commencement
of work. Any work not meeting PREPA or generally accepted power line construction
standards or turned in falsely will be redone at no cost to PREPA. If subsequent
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inspections are required alter the initial follow up the actual cost shall be billed to
Contractor. The presence of PREPA personnel shall not in any way alter, modify, or
lessen the obligation of the Contractor to comply with the requirements of this Contract.
Any inspection by PREPA personnel shall not be considered as an acceptance of waiver
of warranty or other rights of the work inspected.

The Contractor shall promptly correct all work reasonably deemed by PREPA as failing
to conform to the power grid construction specifications provided by PREPA to the
Contractor pursuant to the previous paragraph. The Contractor shall promptly remedy
the lack of performance and execute the work in accordance with the specifications,
without expense to PREPA. If the Contractor fails to correct work deemed by PREPA
within a reasonable time after notice has been given to the Contractor, PREPA may
correct such work at the expense of the Contractor. Such expense may be deducted by
PREPA from any payments due or to become due to the Contractor or, if final payment
has been made, the Contractor shall reimburse PREPA such amounts.

Contractor will not be subject to compliance with any performance specification during
the duration of this reconstruction work. ‘

ARTICLE 9: Access to Work

1) The Contractor shall permit all persons appointed or authorized by PREPA to visit and
inspect the work or any part thereof at all times and places during the progress of
same.

2) Subject to apprupriate safety considerations, the Contractor agress to provide the
FEMA Administrator or his authorized representatives’ access to work sites pertaining
to the work being completed under the Contract.

ARTICLE 10: Force Majeure

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, it is agreed that either party
hereto will be relieved of its obligations hereunder in the event and to the extent that
performance hereof is delayed or prevented by any cause beyond its control and not
caused by the party hereto claiming relief hereunder, including, without limitation, acts of
God, industrial disturbances, acts of the public enemy, war, blockages, boycotts, riots,
insurrections, epidemics, earthquakes, storms, floods, civil disturbances, lockouts, fires,
explosions, interruptions of services due to the acts or failure to act of any governmental
authority, provided that these events, or any other claimed as a
Force Majeure event, and/or its effects, are beyond the reasonable control and were not
caused by the fault or negligence of the party claiming the Force Majeure event, and that
such party, within ten (10) days after the occurrence of the alleged Force Majeure, gives
the other party written notice describing the particulars of the occurrence and its estimated
duration. The burden of proof as to whether a Force Majeure has occurred shall be on
the party claiming the Force Majeure.
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ARTICLE 11: Suspension of Payment

If Contractor fails in completing the work, or any separable part thereof, within the
timeframe established in Article 4, Commencement and Completion_of Work, PREPA
may, as its option, retain that portion of the payment attributable to the non-conforming
work until such service discrepancies have been corrected.

In case of delay, the Contractor shall within ten (10) days from the beginning of any such
delay notify the Engineer in writing of the causes of delay, who shall ascertain the facts
and the extent of the delay and extend the time for completing the work when in his
judgment the findings of facts justify such an extension, and his findings of facts thereon
shall be final and conclusive on the parties hereto, subject only to appeal by the
Contractor as provided in the ARTICLE 27, Disputes; provided that, no claim made by
Contractor against PREPA, its agents, contractors, subcontractors, employees,
successors, assignees, for any cause whatsoever, during the progress of any portion of
the work embraced in the Contract shall relieve any of the parties from the performance
of its obligations and of the work under this Contract, which shall not suffer any delay by
reason of a claim being ascertained by either Party under this Contract.

ARTICLE 12: Insurance

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect durlng the life of this
Contract and thereafter as provided herein, policies of insurance covermg all operations
engaged in by the Contract, which shall be formally agreed with insurance companlas
authorized to do business in Puerto Rico, and to that the effect it shall provide i in original
certificates of insurance and endorsements, as follows:

A. Workers Compensation Insurance

The Contractor shall provide Workers Compensations Insurance as required by
the Workmen's Compensation Act of the Commonweaith of Puerto Rico, or in case
of emergency short term work, a policy from the contractor's state of operation
shall be accepted. The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with said
Workmen's Compensation Act by all his subcontractors, agents, and invitees.

The Contractor shall fumish PREPA a certificate from the State Insurance Fund
showing that all personnel employed in the work are covered by the Workmen's
Compensation Insurance, in accordance with this Contract.

B. Employer's Liability Insurance

The Contractor shall provide Employer's Liability Insurance with minimum bodily
Injury limits of $1,000,000 for each employee and $1,000,000 for each accident,
covering against the liability imposed by Law upon the Contractor as a result of
bodily injury, by accident or disease, including death arising out of and in the
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course of employment, outside of and in the course of employment, and outside of
and distinct from any claim under the Workmen's Compensation Act of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

C. Commercial General Liability Insurance

The Contractor shall provide a Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits
of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate. This Policy shall include
a completed operations.

D. Automobile Liability Insurance

The Contractor shall provide an Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of
$1,000,000 combined single limit covering all owned, non-owned and hired
automaobiles.

Requirements under the Policies:

The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance required
under this Contract shall be endorsed to include:
a. As additional insured:

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority

Risk Management Office

PO Box 364267

San Juan, PR 00936-4267

b. 30 day cancellation or nonrenewable notice to be sent to the above address.

c. An endorsement including this Contract under contractual liability coverage
.-and identifying it in number, date and parties to the contract.

d. Waiver of Subrogation in favor of PREPA.
e. Breach of Warranties or Conditions: “The breach of any of the Warranties

or Conditions in this policy by the Contractor shall not prejudice PREPA's rights
under this policy."

ARTICLE 13: Independent Contractor

1) PREPA and the Contractor agree that Contractor’s status hereunder and the status of
any agents, employees and subcontractors engaged by the Contractor shall be that
of an independent contractor only and not that of an employee, agent, director or
officer of PREPA nor shall they be considered a public servant of neither PREPA nor
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the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Contractor recognizes that its personnel shall
not be entitled to employment benefits such as vacations, sick leave, retirement
benefits and other benefits from PREPA because of its condition as an independent
contractor. Neither the Contractor nor its personnel shall have any power or right to
enter into contracts on behalf of PREPA. No provision of this Contract shall be
deemed to create an employment relationship between Confractor or his employees
and PREPA. ;

2) The employees of Contractor engaged in performing services hereunder will be
considered employees of Contractor for all purposes and will under no circumstances
be deemed to be employees of PREPA. PREPA will have no supervisory power or
control over any such Contractor's employees and any complaint or change in
procedure will be communicated transmitted by PREPA to Contractor who will in tum
promptly give any necessary instructions to its own personnel.

3) Contractor will be responsible for the direct supervision of its employees through its
designated representative and such representative will in turn, report to and confer
with the designated agents of PREPA with respect to the services.

4) Except as expressly provided otherwise In this Master Services Agreement,
Contractor agrees to assume full and complete responsibility for any and all liability to
its employees on account of injury, disability, and death resulting from, or sustained
by said employees in the performance of the services defined herein.

5) At PREPA's request, Contractor will immediately remove from service any employee
whose acts or omissions will be a violation of applicable law or constitute a breach of
this.

6) Both parties agree to accept full and exclusive liability for the payment of any and all
taxes, contributions, and other payments for unemployment compensation and/or
pension benefits, Worker's Compensation, employers liability insurance or annuities
now or hereafter imposed upon employers as applicable to them with respect to its
employees and each party will make such payments and will make and file any and
all reports and returns and take all other actions do all other things necessary to
comply with the laws imposing such taxes, contributions, or cther payments.

7) Contractor represents and warrants that the employees used in the performance of
the services hereunder will have the qualifications, skills and experience necessary to
perform the services and will have the work records as represented to PREPA.

8) In the performance of the Contract, Contractor will comply with all applicable statutes,
regulations, ordinances pertaining to nondiscrimination in employment and facilities.

Contractor agrees to hold PREPA harmless and to indemnify and defend PREPA in full
for any and all damages, claims, assessments, penalties, liabilities, charges, attorney's
fees or other losses incurred during or following the term of this Contract, which result
from any assertion, claim, determination or adjudication that Contractor or any of its
employees are employees of PREPA, including, but not limited to, any claim,
determination or adjudication made pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code, any of Puerto
Rico Unemployment laws and regulations, Compensation Law, or any other federal, state
or local wage, employment, insurance, labor and other laws, statutes, regulations and
ordinances.
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ARTICLE 14: Termination

1) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Contract regarding its term, PREPA
may, at any moment, terminate, cancel or accelerate its expiration, after giving the
Contractor not less than thirty (30) days prior notice, for any or no reason, when in
PREPA's judgment such action responds to its best interest.

2) PREPA may terminate this Contract (or any portion thereof) for any cause if Contractor
(i) becomes insolvent, or (ii) in is material breach of the service obligation, which does
. not otherwise have a specified contractual remedy, and fails to cure the breach within
thirty (30) days of notice from PREPA,; or fails to commence to cure the material
breach and diligently proceed with the cure if it is not possible to cure within thirty (30)
days of such notice. If PREPA terminates the Contract, PREPA shall pay to the
Contractor all portions of the work completed and for actual, reasonable, and
necessary expenses caused by such termination, which shall apply in the case of
Termination by either Party for any reason.

3) If this Contract is so terminated, the Contractor shall be compensated for actual,
reasonable, and necessary expenses, inciuding reasonable demobilization costs
caused by such termination. The exercise of PREPA’S right to terminate, cancel or
rescind the Contract shall not be understood as a waiver by PREPA to any other
remedy it may have under this Contract or under the law for delays or breach incurred
by the Contractor in the performance of its obligations under the Contract.

4) Breach By PREPA. Upon written notice to PREPA from Contractor stating ihat PREPA
is in material breach of the Contract, PREPA will immediately remedy such material
breach. Where PREPA fails to remedy such material breach within ten (10) days or
to promptly initiate and continue in good faith to remedy a material breach that cannot
be reasonably remedied in ten (10) days, Contractor will have the right to terminate
the Contract upon five (5) days' notice to PREPA. PREPA further agrees that if it
commits a substantially similar material breach more than twice in any one (1) month
period, regardless of remedy, Contractor will have the right to terminate the Contract
upon notice to PREPA.

ARTICLE 15: Termination Settlement

1) If the Contract is terminated for any reason, the Contractor shall stop work as specified
in the termination notice provided by PREPA, and shall be prohibited from incurring
additional obligations of Contract funds. PREPA may allow costs that the Contractor
could not reasonably avoid during the termination process to the extent that said costs
are determined to be necessary and reasonable.
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2) In the event of a termination, all work in process, finished or unfinished documents,
data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, reports, property and
any other items or deliverables prepared by the Contractor that would be furnished to
PREPA, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or the Federal government if the Contract
had been fully performed shall, unless otherwise stated in writing by PREPA, become
PREPA's property.

3) Following termination, the Contractor shall submit a final termination settlement
proposal to PREPA in the form and with the certification prescribed by PREPA. The
Contractor shall submit the final termination settlement proposal promptly, but no later
than one year from the effective date of termination, unless extended in writing by
PREPA upon written request of the Contractor within this one-year period. The
Contractor and PREPA may agree upon the whole or any part of the amount to be
paid or remaining to be paid because of the termination. The amount may include a
reasonable allowance for profit on work done. However, the agreed amount may not
exceed the total Contract price as reduced by (1) the amount of payments previously
made and (2) the Contract price of work not terminated. The Contract shall be
modified, and the Contractor paid the agreed amount.

ARTICLE 16: Permits and Licenses

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain all the licenses, permits, and authorizations
required to perform all services, works, operations and tasks under this Contract, and
shall send all notices, pay all fees and related costs, and will comply and will have its
subcontractors and agents comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations
applicable to the work.

ARTICLE 17: Minimum Wage Rates

Laborers and other employees engaged under this Contract shall be paid not less
than the minimum wages rates prescribed by law. PREPA may withhold from any
monies due to the Contractor any sum necessary to make up the full amount of wages
due under this Contract and may distribute it directly to those entitled thereto
hereunder.

ARTICLE 18: Contingent Fees

The Contractor guarantees that he has not employed any person to solicit or secure
this Contract upon any agreement for a commission percentage, brokerage or
contingent fee. Breach of this guarantee shall give PREPA the right to annul the
Contract or, at its discretion to deduct from the Contract price or consideration the
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fees. This
guarantee shall not apply to commission’s payable by contractors upon contract or
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sales secured or made through bona fide established commercial or selling agencies
maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business.

ARTICLE 19: Other Contracts ,,‘

PREPA may award other contracts for additional work, and the Contractor shall fully
cooperate with such other contractors of this Contract, and carefully fit his own work
to that provided under other contracts as may be directed by the Contracting Officer.
The Contractor shall not commit or permit any acts which interfere with the
performance of work by any other Contractor.

ARTICLE 20: Official not to Benefit e

No officer, employee or agent of PREPA, or of the Government of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico or Municipal Governments, shall be admitted to any share or part of
this Contract or to any benefit that may arise there from, but this provision shall not be
construed to extend to this Contract if made with a corporation for its general benefit.

In addition to the restrictions and limitations established under the provisions of
Act 1-2012, as amended, retired or former officers or employees of PREPA, whose
work was in any way related to the award or management of contracts, shall in no way
benefit from any contract with PREPA for ‘a perlod of two (2) years after leaving
employment with or ceasing services to PREPA.

ARTICLE 21: Conflict of Interest

The Contractor certifies that none of its representatives under this Contract receive
payment or compensation of any nature, for services rendered regularly through an
appointment to a governmental agency, body, public corporation or municipality of Puerto
Rico. The Contractor aiso certifies that he may have consulting services contracts with
other governmental agencies or bodies, but such condition does not constitute a conflict

of interest for the Contractor.

The Contractor acknowledges that in executing the services pursuant to Contract it has
duty of complete loyaity towards PREPA which includes not having adverse interests
to those of PREPA related to the services. Those adverse interests include representation
of clients which have or may have opposed interests to those of PREPA in relation to the
services. Also, the Contractor shall have the continuous obligation to disclose to PREPA
all information and circumstances of its relations with clients and third persons and any
interest which could reasonably influence PREPA when executing this Agreement or

during its term.-

1) The Contractor represents conflicting interests when on behalf of a client he must
contend for that which it is his duty to oppose to comply with its obligations with
another previous, present or potential client. Also, the Contractor represents
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2)

3)

4

conf!icling interests when his conduct is described as such in the canons of ethic
applicable to the Contractor and his personnel or in the laws or regulations of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

In the event that any of the partners, direétors or employees of the Contractor should
incur in the conduct described herein, said conduct shall constitute a violation to the

prohibitions provided herein. The Contractor shall avoid even the appearance of the

existence of conflicting interests.

The Contractor acknowledges that the PREPA’s Chief of Supply Chain Division and
Contracting Officer shall have the power to intervene the acts of the Contractor and/or
its agents, employees, and subcontractors regarding the enforcement of the
prohibitions contained herein. In the event that PREPA should discover the existence
of adverse interests with the Contractor, the Chief of Supply Chain Division and
Contracting Officer shall inform the Contractor, in writing, of PREPA’s intention to
terminate this Contract within a thirty (30) day period. During said period, the
Contractor may request a meeting with the Chief of Supply Chain Division and
Contracting Officer to present his arguments regarding the alleged conflict of interests,
which meeting shall be granted by PREPA in every case of alleged conflict of interests.
In the event that the Contractor does not request such a meeting during the specified
thirty (30) day period or the controversy is not satisfactorily settled during the meeting,
this Contract shall be cancelled. _

The Contractor certifies that, at the time of award of this Contract, it does not have
any other contractual relation that can enter in a conflict of interest with this Contract.
The Contractor also ceitifies that no public employee has any personal or economical
interest in this Contract.

ARTICLE 22: Claims for Labor and Materials

1)

Conditions upon timely payment from PREPA pursuant to the terms of this Master
Service Agreement, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, assume the defense of
and save harmless PREPA from claims for labor and materials and not suffer any
mechanics or other liens to remain outstanding against any of the property used in
connection with the work; and shall, on request, furnish satisfactory evidence that all
persons who have done work or furnished materials have been fully paid. If the
Contractor fails to comply with his obligations in this respect, PREPA may take such
liens or claims and may withhold from any monies due to the Contraclor such amounts
as may be necessary to satisfy and discharge any such claims and any cost and
expenses incidental thereto. :

ARTICLE 23: Unfair Labor Practice

1) In the event that the Contractor or any of his subcontractors or agents do not comply

with an order issued by the Puerto Rico Labor Relations Board and/or the National
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Labor Relations Board upon their finding that the Contractor or any of his
subcontractors or agents have committed an unfair labor practice, no further payments
shall be made by PREPA to the Contractor after the date of said order. In addition,
the Contract may be terminated by PREPA, in which case PREPA may take
possession of the materials, tools, and appliances on the job site and finish the work
by whatever method it may deem expedient.

2) Any declaration by the Puerto Rico Labor Relations Board and/or by the Nationai
Labor Relation Board that the contractors or agents have not complied with an order
issued by the Board relating to any unfair labor practice, shall be binding, final and
conclusive unless such order is reversed or set aside by a Court of competent
jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 24: Novation

The Contractor and PREPA expressly agree that no amendment or change order which
could be made to this Contract, during its term, shall be understood as a contractual
novation, uniess both parties agree to the contrary, specifically and in writing. This
previous provision shall be equally applicable in such other cases where PREPA gives
the Contractor a time extension for the compliance of any of its obligations under the
Contract or where PREPA dispenses the claim or demand of any of its credits or rights
under this Contract.

ARTICLE 25: Patents and Copyrights

The Contractor, at its own expense, shall defend any suit or action brought against
PREPA based on a claim that any equipment or part thereof, copyright or un-copyrighted
composition, secret process, patented or unpatented Invention, article, or appliance
manufactured or used in the performance of this Contract, including their use by PREPA,
constitutes an infringement of any patents or copyrights of the United States, if notified
promptly in writing by PREPA, and given the authority, information, and assistance for the
defense of the same, and the Contractor shall pay all damages and costs awarded therein
against PREPA. If, in such suit, the equipment or any part thereof, or the composition, .
secret process, invention, article or appliance is held to constitute infringement and its
use is enjoined, the Contractor, at its option and expense, shall either procure for PREPA
the right to continue using the same. Also, can replace it with non-fringing equipment,
composition, secret process, invention, article or appliance, modify it so it becomes non-
infringing or remove it and refund the purchase price.

ARTICLE 26. Waiver

No waiver of any breach of this Contract shall be held to be a waiver of any other
subsequent breach.

ARTICLE 27: Disputes
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All disputes concerning questions of fact arising under this Contract shall be decided by
PREPA’s Transmission and Distribution Director within 10 days from the submission of
the dispute by Contractor, subject to written appeal by Contractor to the Chief of Supply
Chain Division and Contracting Officer within twenty (20) days. Within 10 days thereafter,
the Chief of Supply Chain Division and Contracting Officer shall inform each party hereto
of his decision regarding the dispute. Contractor, at its option, may elect to accept such
decision or pursue remedies at law or equity. Contractor may pursue directly the
remedies at law or equity for all other disputes other than questions of fact.
Notwithstanding the terms above, each party has the right at any time, at its option and
where legally available, to commence an action or proceeding in a court of competent
jurisdiction to apply for interim or conservatory measures, but not monetary damages.

ARTICLE 28:; Payment to Contractor

Upon completion and acceptance of all work required hereunder, the amount due to the
Contractor under this Contract will be paid upon the presentation of a properly executed
and duly certified invoice therefore, after the Contractor shall have furnished PREPA with
a release, if required, or all claims against PREPA arising under and by virtue of this
Contract, other than such claims if any, as may be specifically excepted by the Contractor
form the operation of the release in stated amounts to be set forth therein; provided that,
the amount of such excepted claims is not included in the invoice for final payment.

All invoices submitted by the Contractor shall be subject to PREPA's approval before
being paid, and its payment shall b2 done within three (3) days after the date of its.
approval by PREPA. All invoices submitted by the Contractor shall include the
Certification established in Article 3, Consideration, in order to proceed with its payments.

ARTICLE 29; Compliance with Laws. Regulations, and Executive Orders

The Contractor acknowledges that starting on October 25, 2017, FEMA financial
assistance will be used to fund this Contract. From and after this date, the Contractor
shall comply with applicable Federal and Commonwealth of Puerto Rico laws,
regulations, executive orders, policies, procedures, and directives, including but not
limited to the Federal Cost Principles set forth in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 for Contractors
material costs, and applicable FEMA regulations in 44 C.F.R. Chapter I. Any failure to
secure approvals or funding from FEMA or some other source (except due to the
Contractor's sole fault) shall not relieve PREPA from its obligations for payment under
this Contract,

ARTICLE 30. Debamment, Suspension, and Ineligibility

1) The Contractor represents and warrants that the Contractor, it principals, and
affiliates have not been debarred, suspended, or placed in ineligibility status under
the provisions of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000 (government debarment
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and suspension reguiations). The Contractor represents and warrants that it will
not enter into any contracts or subcontracts with any individual or entity which has
been debarred, suspended or deemed ineligible under those provisions. During
the term of this Contract, the Contractor will periodically review SAM.gov and local
notices to verify the continued accuracy of this representation. The Contractor
shall require all subcontractors at every tier to comply with this requirement.

2) This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by PREPA. Ifitis
later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2
C.F.R. pt. 3000, in addition to remedies available to the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico and PREPA, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies,
including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

ARTICLE 32. Records Retention.

The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reporis and all other
records produced or collected in connection with this Contract for a period of not less than
three (3) years after the date of final payment and close-out of all pending matters related
to this Contract. If any litigation, claim, or audit is reasonably anticipated to arise or is
started before the expiration of the 3-year period, the records must be retained until all
litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final
action taken.

ARTICLE 33. Ciean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq., and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 etseq. The Contractor
agrees to report each violation to PREPA and understands and agrees that PREPA will,
in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate
Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. The Contractor agrees to include
these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part
with Federal assistance.

ARTICLE 34. Change in Law

During the term of this Contract, if there is any change in law, including, but not limited to
changes in applicable tax law, which causes an increase in Contractor's costs when
supplying the products or services to be acquired by PREPA, Contractor and PREPA

shall use commercially reasonable efforts to resolve the situation, including, but not
limited to, revising the applicable rates.

vy
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ARTICLE 35: Choice of Law

This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Also, the contracting parties expressly agree that only the
state courts of Puerto Rico will be the courts of competent and exclusive jurisdiction to
decide over the judicial controversies that the appearing parlies may have among them
regarding the terms and conditions of this Contract.

ARTICLE 36: Separability

If a court of competent jurisdiction declares any of the Contract provisions as null or
invalid, such holding will not affect the validity and effectiveness of the remaining
provisions of the Contract and the parties agree to comply with their respective obligations
under such provisions not included by the judicial declaration.

ARTICLE 37: Corrrelation of Documents

In case of discrepancy or in the event of any conflict among the different Contract documents
such as: Contract, Scope of Services, Codigo Construccion Eléctrica, Appendixes, and
Contractors Proposal per Contract Release, these shall take precedence in the order given.
The terms-and conditions contained in the Contract shall prevail over any conflictive terms
and conditions contained in the Contactors Proposal and any other document expressly
referenced in this Contract.

. ARTICLE 38: Notice ~

1) PREPA agrees to give the Contractor immediate notice of any and all claims for which
the Contractor may be liable, and the Contractor agrees to give PREPA immediate
notice of any and alt tlaims for which PREPA may be liable.

2) Any notice to be given hereunder shall be in writing and will be sufficiently served
when delivered in person or properly mailed to the following addresses:

To PREPA; Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority
PO Box 364267
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00936-4267
Attention: Eng. Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarado

To Contractor: Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC
144 Aspef)Ridge Way
Whitefish, MT 59937

Attention: Andy Techmanski

ARTICLE 39: Puerto Rico Treasury Department Withholding

4820-7708-4752 1
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PREPA will deduct and withhold at the source to PREPA Net the equivalent of seven
percent (7%) from payment for services rendered In Puerto Rico under this Agreement,
in compliance with the New Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code, Law 1-2011, Section
1062.03, as amended. Notwithstanding, the withholding to be done by PREPA as herein
stated could be increased to: twenty percent (20%) in the event that PREPA Net is a
non-resident individual, which is a U.S. citizen, as provided by the New Puerto Rico
Internal Revenue Code, Section 1062.08; or twenty-nine percent {29%) in the event that
PREPA Net is a non-resident and non U.S. citizen individual; or a foreign corporation or
partnership which is not dedicated to industry or business in Puerto Rico, as provided by
the New Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code, Section 1062.08.

If a Release Letter has been issued to PREPA Net by the Treasury Department, PREPA
Net shall be responsible to submit a copy of sald Release Letter to PREPA for every
calendar year, otherwise, payments under the Agreement shall remain subject to
withholding at the source. All invoices shall be segregated by concepts (services,
materials, equipment, etc.), to identify the amounts subject to withholding, and avoid
undue deductions.

PREPA will deduct and withhold a Special Contribution to PREPA Net the equivalent of
one point five percent {1.5%) from payment for services under this Agreement, in
compliance with Article 1, Act 48-2013. PREPA shall forward such amounts to the
Department of Treasury of Puerto Rico, and shall deliver evidence to PREPA Net of such
payments. All amounts withheld pursuant to this clause shall be reimbursed by PREPA
to Contractor. Contractor shall include any such reimbursement request as a separate
miscellaneous line item on the applicable request for payment.

ARTICLE 40: Discrimination

The Contractor certifies that it is an equal opportunity employer, and does not discriminate
by reason of race, color, gender, age, national or social origin, social status, palitical ideas
or affiliation, religion; for being or perceived to be victim or domestic violence, sexual
aggression or harassment; for physical or menta! disability or veteran status.

ARTICLE 41: Other Taxes

All unemployment, retirement, and other Social Security contributions and taxes; all sales,
use and excise, privilege, business and occupational taxes, and any other taxes or fees
payable by the Contractor are and shall be included as part of his prices.

ARTICLE 42: Quality Assurance

The Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to establish an adequate qua;lity
control program to salisfy all applicable regulation and requirements specified in the

4B28-7768-4753.1
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procurement documents. The program shall contain all those measures
; , nec
assure that all basic technical requisites are fulfilled. SRR

PREPA reserves thg right to conduct audits and inspections to the facilities, activities
and/or documents; limited to inspection and quality control documents that are strictly;
related tq and relevant to the performance of Contractor's activities under this Contract;
when estl.mated necessary in order to assure that the quality control program is adequate
anc_l.if:. being properly implemented. The Contractor shall provide PREPA access to its
facilities and documents; limited to inspection and quality control documents that are
strictly related to and relevant to the performance of Contractor's activities under this
Contract; so that PREPA, through audits and inspections can verify the quality of the
purchased products or services.

ARTICLE 43: Code of Ethics

Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Act of June 18, 2002, No. 84, which
esta[:lishes a Code of Ethics for the Contractors, Suppliers and Economic Incentive
Applicants of the Executive Agencies of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

ARTICLE 44: Complete Agreement

This document, together with all attachments referenced herein, constitutes the complete
Agreement between the parties.

ARTICLE 45: Transfer of Funds

If Contractor decides to assign or transfer an amount, due or payable, to which he is
entitled for services rendered or goods provided during the term of this Contract,
Contractor shall notify PREPA of such transfer of funds, in accordance to the provisions
of Act 21-2012. Said notice shall clearly indicate the rights granted, including a copy of
the contract under which the assignment or transfer of funds is made, the exact amount
of funds to be assigned or transferred, and specific identification information regarding
the assignee (full name of the person or company), address and any other contact
information.

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that PREPA may deduct any amount, due or
payabie under this Contract, that Contractor owes; PREPA may retain any said amount
if Contractor fails to fulfill its obligations and responsibilities under this Contract, or a claim
arises for warranty or defects regarding the services rendered or goods provided under
this Contract. Contractor also acknowledges and agrees that PREPA's payment
obligation under any assignment of funds will cease upon payment of the outstanding
amounts under this Contract. PREPA shall not be required to make payments or transfer
any funds for an amount that exceeds the payment to which Contractor is entitied to under
this Contract.

4820-77088-4753 1
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Contractor shall include with its notice of assignment of funds a cashi

ier's check or mone
order for two_hyndred dollars ($200), payable to "Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority"y
to cover administrative costs in processing such assignment. '

ARTICLE 46: Safety Provisions

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable parts of this Safety Provisions according
to the scope of the project. The Contractor shall comply with ali applicable federal, state,
and local laws, regulations, orders, or decrees in effect during the period of
performance. Almost all of the requirements of this Section are not applicable to the
scope of Contractor's Work. Contractor will provide information responsive to any
applicable portions.

1) The Program shall comply with the following minimum requirements of a heaith and
safety program, according with the scaope of the project including, but not limited to:

i. Occupational Exposure to Noise (29 CFR 1910.95)
ii. Hazardous Materials (29 CFR 1910 Subpart H)
iii. Personal Protective Equipment (29 CFR 1926 Subpart E)
iv. Hazard Communication (29 CFR 1910.1200)
v. Fire Protection (29 CFR 1910 Subpart L)
vi. Electrical work (28 CFR 1926 Subpart K)
vii. Tools, Hand and Powered (1926 Subpart i)
viii. Lockout/Tag out (29 CFR 1910.147)

ix. Portable Ladders ‘
x. Electric Power Generation, Transmission and Distribution (29 CFR 1910.269)

2) The Program shall be revised annually.

3) It shall include an accident or incident investigation procedure. This procedure will
always include the preparation of a report, which will be submitted within five days

after accident to the Safety Division of PREPA.

4) The Contractor shall include a Safety Officer.

5) Safety inspections and work permit system shall be included.

6) Before commencement of work, the Contractor shall take part in a coordination
mesting with a Safety Officer and the project manager on PREPA's behalf. During this

meeting the areas to be worked on will be toured, the site-specific work plan will be
discussed and reviewed, and amendments to it could be required.

7) The Contractor shall submit, prior to commencement of the work, for evaluation by the
Safety Division the following:

4828-7788-4753 1
PREPA00000177



Emergen
4 Exhibit 6

Contract fi ;
Page 22 of 34 Or PREPA's Electrica Grid Reconstruction

a. i i
A Site Specific Work Plan including'

activities tg bed )
efore Commenczne' SPecial safety ang hegq

the Municipalit
of intai
b :ﬂwrgency, Y of work to maintain Communication in case of g
- A list of all spegig]j
s Ized personne] i

certifica ioaticr.. coded. Also, inc in
tes, licenses or Certifications required, acc:ordi::é1 ?oiﬁzysg;pa;'c:;a v:rmrl;(g
OorK.

scope of work, :
e. Certification of compliance with Fit Test requirements for the use of negative

pressure respirators if applicable. B
f. Certification of training for the use of personal protective equipment.

8) Each Contractor/Subcontracior shall adhere to a 100% drug /alcohol free work zone.

9) The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining good housekeeping in the work,
rest, lunch and toilet areas and under reasonably sanitary conditions.

10)If the contracted services include demolition activities (as defined per ANSI A10.6 -
1990: Demolition — the dismantling, razing or wrecking of any fixed building or
structure or any part thereof) that will be carried out in buildings or structures, that

because of their construction date or prior use, are suspected to contain asbestos,
lead based paint or other hazardous materials, the contractor will require a certification
from the project manager or owner stating that the building or structure is free of such

materials.

11)Services including activities inside buildings occupied by working personnel, that could
create a hazard to their safety or health, will be offered after PREPA'S working hours.

The exception will be if the contractor could take all the necessary precautions to
protect PREPA's employees and the public from any possible hazard ca_used by the
work. The Contractor will take all steps necessary to assure the area will be free of
nuisance odors or vapors before PREPA's personnel is to reoccupy. All these will be

done in coordination with the local supervisor of PREPA.

40828-7768-4753 1
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12)The Contractor shall assure that all wastes generated by Contractor as a part of the
Work are removed and properly disposed of, in accordance with all applicable laws
and regulations, at the end of every work shift and after the completion of the project.

13)All non-contained chemical products to be used shall be classified as Approved or
Conditionally Approved by PREPA's Hazard Communication Section.

14)Welding operations will comply with the requirements of OSHA, ANSI and NFPA.

15)If the project involves the handling of non-asbestos insulation or other dust generating
materials, like gypsum board, steps shall be taken to prevent the release of the dust

to adjacent areas.

16)The Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall
provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to all employees
on the work site and all other persons who may be affected. This shall include
property, material and equipment on or off the site, under the care, custody or control
of the Contractor or any of the subcontractors.

17)The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations
and lawful orders of any public authorlty having jurisdiction for the safety of persons
or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss. Shall erect and maintain,
as required by existing conditions and progress of the work, all reasonable safeguards
for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against
hazards, promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent
utilities. :

18)If near populated areas, any excavation made by the contractor shall be covered,
protected or barricaded after work hours or if it will be left unattended.

19)The contracior shall notify and coordinate any excavation with the “Centro de
Coordinacion de Excavaciones y Demoliciones” if applicable.

20)The work zone near any public road shall be protected using, signs, cones, barricades,
etc. in accordance with the MUTCD and DOT. In this conditions, any employee in or
around the work zone shall use a reflective vest in accordance with MUTCD.

21)Access to the work zone shall be prohibited to any person not related to the project
by means of signs, barricades, fences or a combination of them.

22)The Contractor shall designate an employee as their safety officer for the project. The
duties of the safety officer could be in addition to his/her nomal duties. The safety
officer shall be in charge of the prevention of accidents and the implementation of the
Safety and Health Program Plan and the Site-specific Plan in coordination with

4B28-7788-4753 1 :
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PREPA’s Safety Officer, Project Manager and Resident Engineer. The contractor
safety officer shall have a basic training of 30 hours in Occupational Safety and Health
Standards for Construction industry from an approved OSHA Training Center.
Evidence of the training shall be submitted if requested by PREPA.

23)Compliance with all safety provisions by subcontractors shall be the responsibility of
the Contractor.

24)Contractor agrees that it shall perform all work in compliance with federal, state and
local occupational safety and health regulations, as described in the Site Specific
Work Plan.

25)Contractor will obtain and maintain, during the duration of the project, the proper
permits from all federal, state and local regulatory authorities or other applicable
government agency with respect to discharge, disposal, use, storage, handling and
transportation of hazardous chemicals and substances as and when applicable law or
regulation requires. For projects including the handiing of asbestos, lead, or spilled
hazardous substances, the notification to EPA or the EQB will be done by the
Contractor, but in coordination with the Safety Officer and the Environmental Advisor
or Officer.

26)Contractor will not cause or permit any hazardous chemical or product containing a
hazardous chemical to be at, or in the vicinity of, any place where any employee,
agent, or contractor of Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority, or any employee of any
such agent or Contractor, may be at risk or exposed to hazard as a result thereof
during normal use or any foreseeable emergency.

ARTICLE 47. Contract Validity

If one or more clauses of the contract are declared invalid, void, unenforceable or illegal,
that shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Contract, which shall
remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 48. Save and Harmless Clause

PREPA and the Contractor shall jointly save and hold harmless and to indemnify, one
another from and against any and all liabilities, claims, demands, suits, losses, damages,
costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees and court costs) for bodily injury
to or death of any third person, or damage to or destruction of any property of third party,
caused by any negligent act or omission on the part of the indemnifying party its officers,
employees, contractors or agents, except to the extent such liabilities, claims, suits,
losses, damages, costs and expenses result from any negligent or wiliful act or omission
on the part of the indemnified party, its officers, employees, contractors or agents in the
performance or failure to perform its obligations under the Agreement.

482B-7780-4753 1
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ARTICLE 49. Warranty

Contractor warrants that it shall perform the Services in accordance with the applicable
standards of care and diligence at the time of performance of the Services, and which are
normally practiced and recognized in performing services of a similar nature (the
“Standard”). Should any of the Services provided by Contractor not fulfill the above
established Standard, Contractor shall take all necessary corrective measures to rectify
such deficient Services, at its own and exclusive cost, whenever such course of action is
possible or desirable. The rectification of deficient Services by Contractor shall not be
understood as a walver by PREPA to any other remedy it may have under this Contract
or under the law or equity for any damages that Contractor's may have caused to it by
rendering such deficient Services.

ARTICLE 50. Authority

PREPA represents and warrants to Cortractor that it has authority to enter into this
Contract with Contractor, including, but not limited to with respect to the Government
Oversight Board and all other relevant authorities.

ARTICLE 51. Time and Materials

PREPA will pay Contractor upon the submission of invoices approved by PREPA as
follows:

51.1 Labor: Payments for labor shall be computed by multiplying the appropriate hourly
rates prescribed in the attached schedule of rates by the number of direct labor hours
performed. The attached schedule of rates assumes a 16 hour a day, 7 days a week
work schedule. The hourly rates shall include wages, indirect costs, general and
administrative expense, and profit. Fractional parts of an hour shall be payable on a
prorated basis.

51.2 Materials: PREPA will reimburse Contractor for allowable cost of materials,
including direct materials, subcontracts for supplies and incidental services for which
there Is not a labor category specified in the Contract, other direct costs (e.g., incidental
services for which there is not a labor category specified in the contract, travel, computer
usage charges, etc.), and applicable indirect costs.

ARTICLE 52. Waiver of Consequential Damages

In no event shall either party be liable to the other, or their respective employees,
subcontractors and/or agents, or any third party, for any indirect, incidental, special,
consequential, punitive damages, or lost profits for any claim or demand of any nature of
kind arising out of or in connection with this Master Service Agreement or the performance
or breach thereof and regardless of whether any such claim arises out of breach of
contract or warranty, tort, negligence, product liability, misrepresentation, indemnity,
contribution, strict liability, equity, or any other legal theory, even in the parties are advised
of the possibilities of such damages.
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ARTICLE 52: Madification of Exhibit A

Contractor and PREPA may supplement or amend the rates set forth on Exhibit A and
Exhibit B by written amendment between the parties.

ARTICLE 53: Provisions Required By Law Deemed Inserted

If, through mistake or otherwise, any provision required by FEMA is not contained herein,
or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the Contract shall be
amended to make such insertion or correction. If PREPA fails to specifically identify the
legal provision to be incorporated into in this Agreement, Contractor shall not be deemed
to be in default until such time as PREPA identifies said provision and allows Contractor
reasonable time to comply with same, and if compliance results in additional costs to
Contractor, an equitable adjustment shall be made to the amounts payable to Contractor.

ARTICLE 54: U.S. Department of Homeland Security Seal, Logo, and Flags-

The Contractor shall not use the U.S. Department of Homeland Security seal(s), logos,
crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific
FEMA pre- approval.

ARTICLE 55: No Obligation by the Federal Government

The Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and is not subject to any
obligations or liabilities to PREPA, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter
resulting from the Contract.

ARTICLE 56: Modifications and Amendments

No amendment to or modification or other alteration of the Contract shall be valid or
binding upon the parties unless made In writing, signed by the parties and, if applicable,
approved by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

ARTICLE 57: Assignment

The Contractor shall not assign any interest In this Contract, and shall not transfer any
interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without prior written approval of
PREPA.

ARTICLE 58: Subcontracting

The Contractor may not subcontract any of the Services that it has committed to perform
or provide pursuant to this Contract without the prior written approval of PREPA, which
consent can be provided via email. Such approvals shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Such consent to subcontract shall not relieve the Contractor of its full responsibilities
under this Contract. Consent to the subcontracting of any part of the services shall not
be construed to be an approval of said subcontract or of any of its terms, but shall operate
only as an approval of the Contractor’s request for the making of a subcontract between
the Contractor and its chosen subcontractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for all
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ARTICLE 59: Access fo Records

1) The Contractor agrees to provide PREPA, the Commonwealth of Pue i

F EMA_AdmlnIstrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, orn:nslgi? ihtzi?'
authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records
of th_e Contrgctor which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions, during Contractor's
performance of the Contract and for up to three (3) years after Contractor's receipt
of final payment under the Contract. In no event shall PREPA, the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United
States, or any of their authorized representatives have the right to audit or review
the cost and profit elements of the labor rates specified herein.

2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any
means whatspever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

ARTICLE 60: Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts

The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for
False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor's actions pertaining to this

Contract.
ARTICLE 61: Procurement of Recovered Materials

In the performance of this Contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products
containing recovered materials that are Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA")-
designated items unless the product cannot be acquired—(i) Competitively within a
timeframe providing for compliance with the Contract performance schedule; (i) Meeting
Contract performance requirements; or (iii) At a reasonable price. Information about this
requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA's
Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site,

https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program.
ARTICLE 62: Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40

U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708) as supplemented by Department of Labor requlations (29 CFR part

5)

1) Overtime. In accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, all laborers (including watchmen and guards) and
mechanics employed by the Contractor or subcontractors shall receive overtime
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay
for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in a workweek. The Contractor and
subcontractors shall comply with all regulations issued pursuant to the Contract
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Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, and with other applicable Federal laws and
regulations pertaining to labor standards.

2) \{lola.tion;_liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any
violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section the Contractor and
any §ubcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In
addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States
and/or Commonwealth of Puerto Rico for liquidated damages of $10 for each
calendar day a !aborer or mechanic worked more than the standard forty-hour
workweek without receiving overtime pay. Such liquidated damages will be
caiculated separately for each laborer or mechanic that worked more than of forty
hours in a week without receiving overtime wages as required under paragraph (a)
of this section. :

3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized
representative of the United States Department of Labor withhold or cause to be
withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the
Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract
with the same prime Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to
the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same
prime Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any
liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated
damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b) of this section.

4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts
the clauses set forth in paragraph (a) through (a; of this section and also a clause
requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower fier
subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs
(a) through (d) of this section.

ARTICLE 63: Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended)

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required
certification attached as Appendix A to this Contract. Each tier certifies to the tier above
that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any
other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such
disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to PREPA and the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico.

ARTICLE 64: Reporting Requirements
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The Contractor shall complete and submit all reports, in such form and according to such
schedule, as may be required by PREPA.

ARTICLE 66: Equal Opportunity

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

1

2)

3)

4)

5)

The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment,
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this
nondiscrimination clause.

The Contractor will,; in all solicitations or advertisements for employees piaced by
or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive
consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any
employee or applicant for smployment because such employee or applicant has
inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or
applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to
instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information
of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job
functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to
individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such
disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charqe, in furlherance of an
investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted
by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish

information.

The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers \.«flth
which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understandm'g
a notice advising the labor union or workers’ representative of the Contractcgss
commitments under section 202 of Executive Qrde_r 11246 _of September 24, 191:1 !
as amended, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available

to employees and applicants for employment.

The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246, and of the
rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
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ARTICLE 67: EEMA Disaster Assistance Survivor/Registrant Data. i

1) If the Contractor has access to Disaster Assistance Survivor/Registrant data, or
any other personally identifiable information, the Contractor shall comply with the
provisions of the Terms and Conditions for Sharing FEMA Disaster Assistance i
Survivor/Registrant Data with Stute Governments set forth in the FEMA- '
Commonwealth Agreement for FEMA-4339-DR-PR (attached as Exhibit B). .

2) The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold hamless PREPA and the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico for any and all costs associated with the defense
of that litigation, including costs and attorneys' fees, settlements, or adverse
judgments arising from the Contractor’s failure to comply with the requirements of

Exhibit B.

ARTICLE 68: Penalties, Fines, and Disallowed Costs.

By executing this Contract, PREPA hereby represents and wam_ants that FE._MA has
reviewed and approved of this Contract, and confirmed that this Confract is ln_an
acceptable form to qualify for funding from FEMA or other U.S. Governmental agencies.

o
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If, as a result of any uncured violation of applicable law by Contractor, any U.S. Federal
agency or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico disallows or demands repayment for cosis
incurred in the performance of this Contract, or if any penalty is imposed due to an act or
omission by the Contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for such penaity,
disallowed costs, or repayment demand to the extent of its fauit and/or responsibility, and
shall reimburse PREPA in full within ten (10) days of determination of its appropriate share
of such penalty, disallowance, or repayment demand. Any monies paid by the Contractor
pursuant to this provision shall not relieve the Contractor of liability to PREPA for damages
sustained by PREPA by virtue of any other provision of this Contract.

ARTICLE 69: Compliance with Commonweailth of Puerto Rico Contracting Requirements

The Contractor shall comply will applicable Commonwealth Law, Regulations or
Executive Orders that regulate the contracting process and requirements of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Particularly: Act No. 237-2004 as amended that
establishes uniform contracting requirements for professional and consultant services for
the agencies and governmental entities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the
Puerto Rico Department of Treasury Circular Letter Number 1300- 16-16. Available
at:http://mww.hacienda.pr.gov/publicaciones/carta-circular-num-1300-16-16. Subject to
the availability of the respective Government of Puerto Rico Department Offices, the
Contractor shall provide the following certifications and sworn statement as applicable in
a term of fifteen (15) days after the execution of this Contract:

1) An Income Tax Return Filing Certificate, issued by the Treasury Department of Puerto
Rico, Area of Internal Revenues, assuring that Whitefish Energy has filed his Income
Tax Return for the last five (5) years.

2) Certification issued by the Treasury Department of Puerto Rico which indicates that it
does not owe taxes to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico; or is paying such taxes by
an installment plan in full compliance with its terms.

3) Sales and Use Tax Filing Certificate, issued by the Treasury Department of

4) Fuerto Rico, Area of Internal Revenues.

5) Cenrification issued by the Treasury Department of Puerto Rico which indicates that it
does not owe Puerto Rico Sales and Use Taxes to the Commonwealth of

6) Puerto Rico; or Is paying such taxes by an instaliment plan in full compliance with its
terms.

7) Ceriification issued by the Municipal Revenues Collection Center (MRCC), assuring
that Whitefish Energy does not owe any tax to such governmental agency.

8) Certification issued by Municipal Revenues Collection Center (MRCC) demonstrating
that Whitefish Energy has filed the Personal Property Tax Return to such
governmental agency. Additionally, if Whitefish Energy does not own personal
property in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Whitefish Energy shall provide a swom

statement which states that:
a) Its income is derived and paid for professional services (explain the nature of such

services);
b) During the last five years, Whitefish Energy has not owned personal property in

the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico;

482877884753 1 | C/lf
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c) For the reasons above stated, Whitefish Energy is not required to file Personal
Property Tax in the Commonweaith of Puerto Rico as established in Article 6.03 of
Act 83 of august 1991 and therefore a Personal Property Tax file does not exist for
Whitefish Energy in the MRCC.

9) Certification, issued by the Department of Labor and Human Resources of Puerto
Rico, assuring that Whitefish Energy has paid to the Department of Labor and Human
Resources of Puerto Rico its employees' contribution, in accordance with the Puerto
Rico Employment Security Act (unemployment, temporary disability or sickness, or
social security for chauffeurs); or is paying such contribution by an instaliment plan In
full compliance with its terms.

10)Certification, issued by the Child Support Administration, assuring that the Whitefish
Energy is in compliance with the withholdings required by ASUME.

. 11)Copy of the Merchant's Registration Certificate.

12) A sworn statement to the effect that, as of the Effective Date, neither Whitefish Energy
nor its president, vice-president, directors, executive director, members of its board of
directors or board of officers, nor any of its officials or persons performing equivalent
functions for the Whitefish Energy; nor its subsidiaries or alter egos have been
convicted of, nor have they pled guilty, in Puerto Rico, in the federal jurisdiction, in any
state or territory of the United States of America or in any country, to any crime as
enumerated in Article 3 of Public Law 458 of December 29, 2000 of the
Commonwealth of Puertio Rico, as amended. in accordance with Article 6 of Public
Law 458 of December 29, 2000 of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as amended,
Whitefish Energy acknowledges that its conviction or guilty plea for any of the crimes
as enumerated in Article 3 of such Act shall entail, in addition to any other applicable
penalty, the automatic rescission of this Contract. In addition, but only to the extent
required by Public Law 458, PREPA shall have the right to demand the reimbursement
of payments made pursuant to this Contract that directly result from the committed
crime.

13)Good Standing Certificate and Certificate of Authorization to do business in Puerlo
Rico, both issued by the Department of State of Puerto Rico (called “Certificado de
Good Standing” in the website) or its equivalent.

14)Compliance with Act No. 1 of Governmental Ethics: The Contractor will certify that it
is in compliance with Act 1 of January 3, 2012, as amended, known as the Ethics Act
of the Government of Puerto Rico, which, stipulates that, no employee or executive of
the Contractor, nor any member of his/he immediate family (spouse, dependent
children or other members of his/her household or any individual whose financial
affairs are under the control of the employee) shall have any direct or indirect
pecuniary interest In the services to be rendered under this Contract, except as may
be expressly authorized by the Governor of Puerto Rico in consultation with the
Secretary of Treasury and the Secretary of Justice of the Government. 3 LLP.R.A. §
8611 et seq.;

15)Law 168-2000: Law for the Strengthening of the Family Support and Livelihcod of
Elderly People: The Contractor wili certify that if there is any Judicial or Administrative
Order demanding payment or any economic support regarding law number 168-2000
as amended the same is current and in all aspects in compliance. Act 168-2000 “Law

4028.7700-4753 1 o
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for the Strengthening of the Family Support and Livelihood of Elderly People” in
Spanish: “Ley para el Fortalecimiento del Apoyo Familiar y Sustento de Personas de
Edad Avanzada", 3 L.P.R.A. §8611 et seq.

16) Law Num. 127, May 31, 2004: Contract Registration in the Comptroller’s Office of
Puerto Rico Act: Payment for services object of this Contract will not be made until
this Contract is properly registered in the Office of the Comptroller of the Government
of Puerto Rico pursuant to Law Number 18 of October 30, 1975, as amended.

17) Thirty-Days for Compliance. The Emergency Order provides that aill Agencies or
Municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will have 30 days after the state
of emergency is finished to register the signed document to the Office of the
Comptroller of the Government of Puerto Rico. Executive Order OE-2017-053.

18) Law Num. 84 June, 2012 Cade of Ethics for Contractors, Suppliers and Seekers
of Economic Incentives of the Executive Agencies of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico: No employee or officer of PREPA as well as any member of their families can
have any interest in the earnings or benefits from this Contract, according with Law
No. 84, June 18, 2002. The Contractor acknowledges that it must read the Ethics
Code for Contractors, Suppliers, and Applicants of Economic Incentives from the
Government of Puerto Rico Agencies known in Spanish as Cddigo de Etica para
Contratistas, Suplidores y Solicitantes de Incentivos Econdmicos de las Agencias
Ejecutvas de Pueto Rico. Such law can be found at
http://www.lexjuris.com/lexlex/leyes2002/lexi2002084.htm . The Contractor certifies
that it will read such law and that In the event it cannot access the online version it will
notify the Agency of Municipality in order to obtain printed copy of the law. Failure to
require printed copy of the law to the Agency of Municipality will be evidence that the .-
Contractor was able to find it online and read it as required. .

19) Consequences of Non-Compliance: The Contractor expressly agrees that the
conditions outlined throughout Article 69 are essential requirements of this Contract;
consequently, should any one of these representations, warrants, and certifications
be incorrect, inaccurate or misleading, in whole or in part, and should such non-
compliance not be cured within thirty (30) days, there shall be sufficient cause for
PREPA to render this Contract null and void and the Contractor reimburse to PREPA
all moneys received under this Contract.

Article 70. Entire Agreement

The terms and conditions contained herein constitute the entire agreement between
PREPA and the Contractor with respect to the subject matter of this Contract, and
supersede all communications, negotiations, and agreements of the parties, whether
written or oral, other than these, made prior to the signing of this Contract.

4828-7788-4753 1 C((
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Contract this 17th day
of October of 2017, in San Juan, Puerto Rico.

Puerto Rico &lectric Power Authority Whitefish Energy Holding, LLC

Ak
v
Ricardo Luis Ramos Rodriguez Andy Techmanski
Executive Director Chief Executive Officer

4828-7788-4753 1
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Exhibit 6

T A @

BID SCHEDULE
[OFFEROR'S NAME : WHITEFISH ENERGY HOLDINGS, LLC ,
: e ; .
' DIRECT WEH RATE SCHEDULE LT Taofuon T T
CONTRACT LINE ) A
[TEM NUMBER e TTumm |
fcuin) T DESCRIPTION ~ TTQUANTITY ' UNIT | PRICE
" |GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S (G.C.] N N 1
" 'rELosupervisoryANs |
- MANAGEMENT OVERHEAD
1 [G.C.SITE SUPERVISOR 1 HRS $330.00
2 {G.C. SUPERINTENDENT 1 HRS | $300.00
3 'G.C. QUALITY CONTROL MANAGER 1 HRS $290.00
4 " IG.C.FIELD OFFICE ENGINEER 1 " HRS [ 828000 |
5 1G.C. CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 1 HRS | 27550 .
6  |G.CSENIOR PROJECT MANAGER 1 HRS [ &26350 |
7 IG.C. PROJECT MANAGER 1 HRS | $24750 .
8 !G.CLOGISTICS MANAGER 1 HRS [ 23250 |
9  !G.CPROJECT COORDINATOR 1 HRS $188.07
10 G.CLOGISTICS COORDINATOR - 1 HRS §188.07 1
% 11 G.C. FIELD OFFICE ADMINISTRATOR 1 HRS $14026 |
12 |G.CSAFETY OFFICER 1 HRS $227.88 |
13 [G.C. PROJECT ACCOUNTANT (Sr} 1 HRS $440.00
14 |G.C. PROJECT ACCOUNTANT (Ir) 1 HRS 830000 |
" [TRADE LABOR i
~ [Clvil Labor - B
15~ | Foreman/lead Man 1 HRS B
16 | Skilled Labor T 1 HRS S
‘1'_'{:"_"'_; Unskilled Labor 1 HRS
i Steel Tower Labor N o i i
18 | Foreman lronworker ) 1 HRS T
19 [ Journeyman Ironworker 1 HRS i
Powerline Labour ’
20 | General Foreman 1 HRS $24024 =
21 | Foreman B 1 HRS - $230.63
22 | Journeyman Lineman T 1 HRS 5227.88
23 | Heavy Equipment Operator 1 HRS $204.55
24 | Groundman 1 HRS " d1ss07 |
5 [ am ) | 1  HRS 820455
6 | A2 ” T TR “Hﬁs"'"i—sﬁW““'
277 AR 3 ) WRST T S19908 |
28 | AM } ) A HRS ¢ 519631 |
29 | A N o oA ) HRS . $19356 .
30 APG o2 HRS ¢ 519082 |
31 - AP? ™1 " HRS | §188.07
32 Mechanic | 1 i HRS ~ T $204.55
Ya | Health Care Practitioner R L

Page 1 of 4 M
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E —.__|Tree Trimming Labour —
¥_ | Seneralforeman " T N L e »
A | Foreman/Crewleader 1 ARS S
35 | Trimmer Climber F Y T T
36 - 1_ Ground Person T T HRS R
Equlpmeni - e e S R
______|TRADE EQUIPMENT T - - i R

Civil Equipment T )
37 Minl Excavator H_“- T 1 HRS 529'50
38 Backhoe _ B 1 HRS $95.35 -
38 | Excavator 45k-55k b L 1 HRS $107.67 ==
40 Excavator 75k-85k Ib 1 HRS $161.49
41 _|_Excavator 100k-110k Ib 1 HRS $242.25
2 Hydraulic Hammer T T 1 HRS $110.00
43 Wheel Loader 3-4yd o N "HRS $80.75
44 Skid Steer/Forkllft 1 HRS $75.40 i
15 Dozer 105 HP - 1 HRS $94.15
46 Dozer 130 HP 1 HRS $130.19 | i
47 Dozer 165HF - 1 HRS $148.55 g
48 Dazer 205 HP T 1 HRS $160.11 :
49 Tractor _ 1 HRS $71.55 e
S0 End Dump Traller 1 HRS . $24.75
51 Low boy trailer 1 HRS $57.79 |
52 Service Truck/Fuel Trailer 1 HRS $61.42
53 30' Goaseneck Trailer 1 HRS - $11.18 1

Steel Tower Equipment i iR T
54 Chain Saw - 1 "HRS $3.70 §
55 Welder 1 HRS $14.45 .
5 | Satelllte Phone - 1 __HRS 1 $8.00

Powerline Equipment N B - §
57, Pickup Truck B _ 1 HRS $32.16 ]
58 Flatdeck Truck - 1 HRS $46.50 I
59 Bucket ,Insulated/Materlal Handler 35'-50' 1 HRS $61.43 ) ;
60 Bucket ,Insulated/Materlal Handler 51"-60' 1| HRs $67.10 i
61 Bucket Insulated/Material Handler >61'/69 1 HRS $85.30 ]
62 Bucket Insulated/Materfal Handler >70/100° | 1 HRS $116.10 N
63 Digger Truck 42'/50' o 1 HRS $77.50. .
1 | “Digger Truck 50/80° N 1 HRS $144.40 o
65 Pcle Trailer 1 | HRs $20.30 .
66 Dump Truck Double Axel T 1 | HRS $88.50 ¥
67 Rear Alley/ Backyard Machine 1 HRS $66.77 )
68 Bob Cat w/ pole setter o 1 HRS $113.51 o
69 Puller, Upto 6,000l 1| WRs [ $107.74 §
70 Puller, Up to 20,000 1b A 1| HRs $165.00
71 Tensioner Up to 10,000 Ib R HRS | .5165.00 S
7 Tensloner Upto20,000l6 - 1 HRS $204.52 -
7 Reel Stands T HRS $28.87 -
74 Single Sheave Block <= 12% T HRS $3.50
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BID SCHEDULE
5 _ Single Sheave Block <= 24" 1 i T
76 , Bundle Sheave Block <= 28" 1 | HRs $7.50
77| Wire Reel Trailer 1 Twes [ Sieea1
78 . Trencher w/Traller 1 " HRS $45.75
78a J Tracked Crawler 1 - HRS $163.32
79 |_ Crane Truck <=35Ton _ Y " HRS $163.32
80 | CraneTruck<=50Ton i B l'“’ HRS | $229.37
?1 _ " CraneTruck<=70Ton T E HRs ! $279.51
82 | Crane Truck <= 130 Tan T T ‘HRS T Zagaas
LB- i Tracked Bucket T e e e e _'_E-_ HRS | 515;.:3 S
84 Tracked Digger T T R R ST TS $144.20 f
85 _ { _Tracked Crane <= 70 Ton U 7T 'T—, 27951 @
35 I ngh FlatTrailer =~~~ T i o "HRS $82.08 T
87 Eq_ql_pmentTraller T o i1 " HRS T 32630 T
88 _ Dump Traller B i i HRS ~ $26.30 =
89 | Enclosed Tool Traiier 1 | WS T ;27 T
80 . Skidder wiih Digger/ Bucket 1 | WS RISTS0 |-
91 i Skidder with WinchGnly ~ " ™77 ] HRS T $1a490° -
92 | AirCompressor and Hammer/Tools N HRS . §7500 |
93 | WaterPumps with Hoses L1 | HRSTTTSTBA |
%4 UV 1 | HRS 7 52650
95 | Generator<=SkW 1| HRS %2240 )
% |_Ge “Generator <=12kW - - ._._-1:: _ HRS T 85740 |
97 ; Ught it Plant <= BkW 1 HRS . $50.20
98 Mobile Truck Satellite Command Center 171 ] HRS U %3682 |
99 'Shipping Container T HRS = 3714 -
100 3 Ofﬂce_Tral!etj o 1| MRS " "$2200 |
L}
ParDlem B T i - _:i' N “:
104 “i Meal/man/day - ';___ 1 |Man-Day $7982
105 Accomodation/man/day ' 1 |Man-Day $33241 ,
106 - I‘meseueal T ’ - e 1 | Gal $4.48 B
@1 » ‘._“(5_‘;‘59!2?.’.6_?'_. . ; i Gl %480 |
108 let-A Fuel/ Gal : 1 : Gal $14, 70
165" Empiyee ights ' = T
" |Relicopters 3 _ e e
110 Hellcopter - Passenger MD 500 _ T 1 | HRS 53,96984 o
111~ | Helicopter- Airiilt 61 - E g HRS 15,993.60
12| Hollcopter-AviitGhirook i i et
ot ncluded: = s e S capa fu S
Equipment Mobilization/Demobilization. Bilied on PO !l . B
[Bonding Premium b s
______ LTen L i : =
L I e ‘
—_ e, 56 i{. = ' ‘--—. PR e
Transport equipment and personnel fram and to mainiand and back to head office. Bifled an PO
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BID SCHEDULE
'OFFEROR'$ NAME : WHITEFISH ENERGY HOLDINGS, LLC :
: ]
SUBCRONTRACTOR RATE SCHED "~ 1071773015 4
CONTRACT LINE CHEDULE A,
'T.fé"f,‘;}"“_"ﬁﬂ. - ogiciivTion ... 90 S
QUANTITY UNIT " PRICE
GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S (G.C.) T ]
| |FIELD SUPERVISORY AND T - .
______ |MANAGEMENT OVERHEAD N i
1 G.C. SITE SUPERVISOR R HRS $462.00
2 G.C. SUPERINTENDENT B 1 | HRs $420.00 e
3 G.C. QUALITY CONTROL MANAGER 1 HRS $406.00
a 6.C. FIELD OFFICE ENGINEER T 1 HRS $406.00
5 G.C. CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 1 HRS $385.70
6 G.C SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER 1 " HRS $368.90
7 G.C. PROJECT MANAGER o 1 HRS | $346.50 1
8 G.C LOGISTICS MANAGER 1 HRS $325.50 ¥
9 G.C PROJECT COORDINATOR ) 1 HRS $263.30 T
10 G.C LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 1 HRS | $263.30 o
11 G.C. FIELD OFFICE ADMINISTRATOR 1 HRS $196.36
12 G.C SAFETY OFFICER o 1 HRS $319.04
71/ 13 G.C. PROJECT ACCOUNTANT (St} R I HRS | $616.00
14 G.C. PROJECT ACCOUNTANT (Jr) ' 1 HRS $420.00 o
TRADE LABOR i
Civll Labor .
15 Foreman/Lead Man L 1 HRS $207.20
16 Skilled Labor - 1 HRS $162.40
17 Unskilled Labor 1 HRS $138.60
Steel Tower Labor - __ ] o
18 Foreman Ironworker - 1 HRS $208.04
19 Journeyman fronworker N HRS _£190.65 ~
Powerline Labour - -
20 General Foreman o 1 HRS $336.34 N
21 Foreman R $322.88 )
22 Journeyman Lineman 1 HRS $319.00_| B
23 Heavy Equipment Operator R _HRS $286.37
24 Groundman . 1 HRS $263.30
25 AP1 1 HRS $286.37 .
26 AP2 1 HRS $282.52 gl
27 I HRS $278.68 N
28 APA - T T " HRs $274.83
29 APS N ' HRS $270.99 | §
30 APG T 1 HRS $267.15 L
31 Ap7 T - N N HRS $263.30 e
32 Mechanic - 1 | Hms $286.37 i}
a Health Care Practitioner 1 HRS $624.40
Page 10of4
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41
Ex e T
42 Hv::a:or 100k-110k 1~ E e :“5
A Wh ulic Hammer 1 |—hs__ | S3%a05
% eel Loader 34 i — HRS 339,15
Skid Steer/Foriim— 1 HRS -
er/Forkiif —2 | $15400 ]
i‘i_____ Dazer 105 jp 1__ HRS .m
46 —1 | THRs
& 1 |_$30555
L I ey
HRS
End Duﬂ'lp Tﬂﬂer
.| Low boy trailer Soas
Service Truck/Fuel Traller
; —sau.s
30' Gooseneck Trailer %
|Steel Tower Equipment b ] ' ;
54 | Chaln Saw :
|55 ] Welder " 11411 HRS $5.ia ‘
HRS f $20.23
£ Latalllte
atollita Phane 1 HRS | 81136 | !
Powerline Equipment —]
57 Pickup Truck :
1 HRS 45. !
58 Flatdeck Truck 1 HRS 25:.:: =
59 Bucket ,Insulated/Material Handler 35'.50" 1 HRS $86.00
60 Bucket ,Insulated/Material Handler 51'-60"' 1 HRS $93.94
|61 Bucket ,Insulated/Materlal Handler >61'/69 1 HRS $119.42
|62 Bucket ,Insulated/Materlal Handler >70/ 100" 1 HRS $162.54 = :
|e3 Digger Truck 42'/50' 1 HRS $108.50 *
64 Digger Truck 50'/80" 1 HRS $202.16 :
65 Pole Traller 1 HRS $28.42
66 Dump Truck Double Axel 1 HRS $123.90
67 Rear Alley/ Backyard Machine 1 HRS $93.48
|68 Bob Cat w/ pole setter 1 HRS $158.91
69 Puller, Up to 6,000 1b 1 HRS $150.84
70 Puller, Up to 20,000 Ib 3 HRS $231.00
71 Tensloner Up to 10,000 Ib 1 HRS $231,00
72 Tensioner Up to 20,000 Ib : | HRS $286.33
73 Reel Stands 1 HRS $40.42
74 Single Sheave Block <= 12" 1 HRS $4.90

Page 3 of 4
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BID SCHEDULE
75 . Single Sheave Block <= 24" 1 HRS 57.49
76 . Bundle Sheave Block <= 28" 1 HRS  $10.50
77 . Wire Reel Traller Cy _HRs $235.35 |
73 " 7 ‘ Trer'i_:hefr\rr{fll_'l_'aller '_ 1 _HRS $64.05
78a .+ Tracked Crawler , 1 HRS $228.65
® | caneTuckes3s7on AT S ime
80 CraneTruck<=50Ton TAT | Tes et
81 Crane Truck <= 70 Ton L1 HRS [ $39131
B2 _Crane Truck <=130 Ton | S HRS | $650.01 .
83 | Tracked Bucket T 1 [ ms @z T
84 Tracked Digger 1 | mms sa0188
85 _, Tracked Crane <=70Ton T3 WRs a3l
86 High Flat Traller . HRS $11617 |
87 " Equipment Traller ) y o HRS $682 |
88 | DumpTrailer ~ i HRS $36.82 |
8 | EnclosedTooiTraler Ty TEes [smes |
90 Skidder with Digger/ Bucket 1 HRs 22050 |
91 Skidder with Winch Only 1| wes 520286 ; -
92 " AirCompressor and Hammer/Toois 1 | HRS 5105-00 o
93 "' ‘Water Pumps with Hoses 1 HRS §1793
94 | UV B 1 WRS T $azi0
95~ | Generator <=5kW R W 336
96 " Generator <=12kW o g ' —HR.Sﬁ ‘ $80.36
67 Light Piant <= BkW = HRS T oas |
o8 Mabile Truck Satellite Command Center 1T 1 . S § 471,13 —__ o
99 Shipping Container 1 HRS $10.00
100 | Offcetaler T~ --i e Hiww
—__|PerDiem T i ) o pre— i Ml
104 . Meal/manjday T S Man-Day “&eE | T
105 | Accomodation/man/day T Man -Day $33241 |
S S B Sl - N . s
ig; | fasollne/Gal - e o v g H " Gal 4.90 T
e Ei; 3:::;/;;'1 - R T 1 Gal $1470 |
— s 4.4 | EAWay | $1,000.00
e 'H_?!!cop!ers - T e iy - ~
110 | Helicopter - Passenger MD 500 e e e -
iI;L““" I Helicopter Alrfiftsel : —::: Siigs?az‘:l O —
2 " e - IO 993,
. A Helicopter AIt_llftChlnuok I S T T
ot inciudeg: T e : - T
Cquipment Mobillzation/Demobiization. Biledon b~ ~~ -
Bondl_r_lg Pramlum - I e S —
iR R e ) [ e e e
I S e N o
P e s it e e -"f A

i

'ransport equipment and personnel from and to mainland and back t to head omca Bilied on P

|
o.-_

e
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Exhibit 7
From: Dykes, Melissa H. - Chief Financial Officer ||| GGG

Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:30 PM
To: Andy Techmansk; [
Ce: Ramon O Caldas Pagan ; Edgardo L. Rivera

; Nelson Morales Rivera
GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ
: JAVIER MORALES TANON
EDGARDO DIAZ REYES
AIDA URBINA RIVAS
Brooks, Jody L. - Chief Legal Officer

Subject: Re: Mutual Aid Agreements With Other APPA Ultilities

Alvarado

Thank you, Andy. Just clarifying that JEA is glad to assist with the transmission and distribution system
restoration by Whitefish as long as it is PREPA’s preference that we do so as subcontractors under Whitefish’s
agreement with PREPA - where Whitefish is responsible for logistics, transportation, security, fuel, work
management, etc. for JEA crews - rather than the existing mutual aid agreement which does not have clear
provisions for logistical arrangements. As long as PREPA is comfortable with that arrangement (including
Whitefish’s recovery of overhead expenses on JEA’s actual costs), we will proceed with haste to provide
assistance, and will share the subcontract with other public power utilities who can do so under a similar
arrangement to assist with the Whitefish-led efforts.

Take care,
Melissa

On Sep 28, 2017, at 8:46 PM, Andy Techmanski [ S -

[External Email ~ Bxercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from unknown
senders or unexpected email. |

Ramon,

| have been in close contact with Melissa Dykes (CFO Jacksonville Electric Authority), whom in turn
has been in close communication with the other electric utilities in the APPA. JEA has 42 lineman
and equipment to support your efforts. | have asked her to reach out to the other utilities to
procure an additional 100, which she has successfully done. The issue is the APPA mutual aid
agreement is very vague and would require a more structured framework agreement for them to
recoup costs. What we worked on together was to have them come in under our agreement as
subcontractors to Whitefish Energy, and they are comfortable with our terms. Whitefish will also
be the coordinator of all of their logistics, fuel, shipping, airfreight, onsite activities, etc. all of what
are critical tasks that PREPA is not setup to manage. What JEA and the other utilities require is an
email from you stating that you approve them operating under Whitefish Energy and our contract
with you. Please reply to this email with your approval, and we will start flooding you with
resources from your sister APPA utilities, and ensure logistical continuity, as well as superb project
execution. Please reply ASAP.

PREPAO000509
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Regards,

Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

From: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Sent: Saturday, September 23, 2017 7:53 PM

To: Andy Techmanski

Cc: Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarado; Nelson Morales Rivera; GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ; JAVIER MORALES
TANON; EDGARDO DIAZ REYES; AIDA URBINA RIVAS

Subject: RE: Power Line Storm Restoration

Hello Andy,

Today, we had a meeting and now we are ready for the mobilization. To do this, we heed to know when is
the sooner date you can bring your people to PR?

We only need the final Scope of Services (SOS) that your company will provide us, to prepare the electronic
contract and send it to you. | include our standard T&C's for your evaluation and comments.

Also, we have 60 rooms at Verdanza hotel reserve to accommodate your first wave We need to know what
are your needs to transport your equipment as soon as possible. We already have air transportation pre-
approved by FEMA for the most critical pieces of equipment. To complete the logistic plan we need to
know all the technical info to be provided to the air cargo transporter and FEMA.

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
concern is that we start to demobilize our of Florida and the cost to mobilize back will start to
increase.

Regards,

Andy Techmanski

Sent from my iPhone

On Sep 19, 2017, at 7:41 PM, Ramocn O Caldas Pagan—/vrote:

Hello, Andy,

Thank you so much for the information. In order to start the evaluation and

PREPA0000510
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

c¢) Equipment daily/weekly/monthly rates

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

8) Is your personnel willing to be accommodated in double occupancy rooms?

These are some of our questions in order to see and evaluate how your services and
capabilities are alighed with the different types of works we have to perform.

if you have any questions, let us know.
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

125 Men in crews consisting of power lineman, equipment operators, and
apprentices. All crew members are accredited through the International Brotherhood
of Electrical Workers {(IBEW) union.

PREPA0000511
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

10 Transmission Bucket Trucks {(90' - 125")
5 Transmission Digger Derricks

10 Boom Trucks (30 ton+/-) with man baskets

4 Distribution conductor pulling sets (6k Ib pullers, tensioners, reel trailers)
2 Transmission Line pulling sets (20k Ib pullers, tensioners, reel trailers)

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

| could mobilize a forward team of 10 - 30 lineman and construction managers to start
helping you package work ASAP.

Our transformer partner could start to ship transformers as soon as this week, in any
voltage configuration. (cbviously larger transformers will take more time).

Regards,

PREPA0000512
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Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

www.whitefishenergy.com<http://www.whitefishenergy.com>
[1472612757304_WEH]

Florida has a very broad Public Records Law. Virtually all written communications to or from State and Local
Officials and employees are public records available to the public and media upon request. Any email sent to or
from JEA’s system may be considered a public record and subject to disclosure under Florida’s Public Records
Laws. Any information deemed confidential and exempt from Florida’s Public Records Laws should be clearly
marked. Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released
in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact JEA by phone
or in writing.
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From: Unspecified Sender

Sent: Sunday, October 1, 2017 8:50 AM

To: Oscar Valem Mireya Rodriguez
Fernandez

Ce: GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ
L. Rivera Alvarado

Edgardo
: Nelson Morales Rivera

Subject: Informacion de WhiteFish Energy Holding

Hola Mireya,
Estos son los correos que recibimos ayer y sobre los cuales estamos trabajando la estrategia para traer el personal.
Saludos,

RC

Sk ke skesk sk sk ke sk sk skok ok Sk kb Sk ok Sk sk ok sk ok sk sk sk ok sk koK ke ok skeak kol ok sk sk sk ek sk sk skok sk sk skl ke ok sk ke ok sk sk sk skesk sk sk koke ok sk sk ke ok ek sk sk skesk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ke ksl sk ke k

Ramon,

1 just got off the phone with Mike Hyland the mutual aid coordinator with APPA. ' emphasized the need to assist you with what ever
resources he carn. | told him we are having problems with logistics and need the governmenis support {o expedite the mobilization to
PR. He has setup a call with Frank Ford who is a Colonel in the Army for of enginesrs and will be coming to PR in coming days o
execute the relief effort for them. | fold Mike that we need frank to use military barges, ships and air fransport to get us there quicker. |
also said that we could use the army to set up g tent city for us. This would allow me fo expedite sending us as many as 1000 lineman
o assist your rebuild. Once | talk to the Army fomorrow | will report back to you .

Regards,

Andy Techmanski
Sent from my iPhone
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Position Sept. 26, 2017 Sept. 26 Contract Sunday & Oct. 17, 2017 Oct. 17, 2017
Contract Holliday Rate Contract Contract
Standard Hourly Rate (Double Time Rate) Standard Hourly Rate | Standard Hourly Rate
(Contract Exhibit A) (Contract Exhibit B)

Overhead General Foreman 134.53 240.24 240.24 336.34
Overhead Line Foreman 129.73 230.63 230.63 322.88
Overhead Line A (First Class) 120.12 227.88 227.88 319.04
Apprentice 7 120.12 204.55 188.07 263.30
Apprentice 6™ 115.32 201.80 190.82 267.15
Apprentice 5™ 110.51 199.06 193.56 270.99
Apprentice 4" 105.71 196.31 196.31 247.83
Apprentice 3™ 100.90 193.56 199.06 278.68
Apprentice 2™ 96.10 190.82 201.80 282.52
Apprentice 1% 91.29 188.07 204.55 286.37
Overhead Operator 120.12 204.55 286.37
Groundman 91.29 188.07 263.30
Safety 133.57 227.88 286.37
Admin 80.12 148.02

Mechanic 120.12 204.55 204.55

Construction Manager 185. 247.50

Trade Labor

Foreman/Lead Man 207.20
Skilled Labor 162.40
Unskilled Labor 138.60

*Source: September 26, 2017 PREPA-Whitefish Master Service Agreement Bid Schedule; October 17, 2017 Amended Master Service Agreement Bid Schedule
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From:  Andy Techmansk

Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 12:19 PM

To: Nelson Morales Rivera ; Kent McNellie
Ce: Ramon O Caldas Pagan Ricardo L. Ramos
Rodriguez

Subject: Re: Doing Business in Puerto Rico assisting in recovery efforts after Hurricane Maria?

Nelson,

There are many concerns from our employees and subcontractors as they revolve around Puerto Ricos,
excessive individual and corporate taxes. Also the local PR employment laws that cover paid time

off, mandatory benefits, and workers compensation are in excess of the mainland. These are substantially
higher than the mainland. With the government offices shut down before we mobhilized here, there were no
resources to inform us to these matters.

| believe the best course of action is to get the Governors office involved and providing all emergency
responders and companies and exemption from PR employment laws, and taxes, whereas their states of origin

would act as the prevailing governing body for these matters.

if we are having these problems, so will other companies that come to PR to support you. Thank you in
advance for your help.

Regards,
Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

www.whitefishenergy.com

From: Nelson Morales Rivera

Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 7:53 AM

To: Kent McNellie; Andy Techmanski

Cc: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Subject: FW: Doing Business in Puerto Rico assisting in recovery efforts after Hurricane Maria?

FYl.

From: BDO Puerto Rico On Behalf Of BDO Puerto Rico

Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 9:09 AM
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A&J STEEL  Weekly Billing Labor and Equipment

Spedalizing In

S Project No: | 2017-178 ,
e Project Name: (Puerlo Rico Restoration I Structure #  Restoration/Mobilization l
Contact: ‘ Antoinette Greenlee Company: \Whiteﬁsh Energy Holdings Inc. Start Date/Time: | Oct 0172017 ]
Reporting Point: Puerto Rico Billing# |zo;7-17sw-m End Date/Time: L Oct 07/2017 l
Standard Time Overtime Total Labor
Antoincttc Greenlee  |Project Manager (PM) 12.5 2 125 125 | 165 175 4000 $ 15035 |8 6.014.00 525 § 192.61 | $10.112.03 | 925 |$  16,126.03
James Greenlee Construction Manager (CM) 175 16 16 18 18 185 40.00 $ 15035 | § 6,014.00 6a.0] $ 19261 ‘ $12,327.04 | 1040 |$ 18,341.04
Leonard Sanchez General Foreman (GF) 12.5 13 125 125 16.5 175 40.00 $ 12035 | % 4.814.00 445 § 16779 § 746666 | 845 |$  12,280.66
Dylan Greenlee Safety Officer (SO) ww | & yrarmseE 40.00 $ 11935 |§ 4,774.00 480/ $ 16679 $800592| 880 |$ 1277992
Brian Johnson Foreman Ironworker ~ (FOR) 125 12 125 125 165 175 40,00 $ 11835 |§ 4.734.00 435/ $ 16529 | $7190.12| 835 [§ 11,924.12
Christopher Jamieson |Ironworker (JIW) 21 125 125 145 13 40.00 $ 10998 | § 4.399.20 335 $ 15029 §503472| 735 |$% 9,433.92
Dustin Hail Ironworker (Iw) A arIraarTaeE 40.00 § 10998 § 439920 370 § 15029 $5560.73| 770 |$  9.959.93
Darrin Hail Ironworker (JIW) o | fe | dze | o | ws | w 40.00 $ 10998 | § 4399.20 370, $ 15029 §$556073| 770 |$  9.959.93
Robert Dobney Tronworker (JIW) ios | s | s | s | qas | s 40.00 § 10998 | § 4399.20 370/ $ 15029 $556073| 770 |$  9.959.93
Paul Deleon Tronworker (IW) g | @ | By | B | s 40.00 § 10998 § 4.399.20 240 $ 15029 $360696| 640 |$ 800616
Gross Total Gross Total s | im | s | sew | s | 13 | 9000 § 1,208.65  §48,346.00 | 4210 | S 1,636.54 $70,425.62 | 821.0 S 118,771.62
PR TAX 7% -$ 8.314.01
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Email To:
3 Fax To:

Job #:
Job Name:
Contractor:

Total WK Hrs

Foreman: | Management

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Whitefish Energy Holdings

Daily Field Labor & Material Report

Stn Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat

17.5

| Date: October 2, 2017
Sta-t Time 4:30 AM
End Time: 10:00 PM

Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

None

Waork Completed Today

Traveled to Dallas to Mobilize to Puerto Rico by Plane. Arrived in Puerto Rico went Hotel Met with Prepa and discussed plan for project. Planned right away paths. Equipment needed,

Man Power, Security. Had meetings with Whitefish

Crew Members

Equipment

Class Name/Nombre

Total Hrs] Yes/Si

Unit # Description

HRS

Unit# Description HRS

cM James Greenlee

17.5

X

James (Jir‘r&me ke
Constructin Makager

]/

PREPA00000241
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e To: (R
raxTo: (N

Total WK Hrs.

Foreman: | Mobilization

1

Job #:

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Job Name:
Contractor:

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration Daily Field Labor & Material Report
Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat
| Date: Cctober, 2,2017
Start Time 7:00 AM
100 End Time: 6:30 PM

Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

Was any work delayed (could not start ar complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

None

Work Completed Today

Started to allocate, organize, and prepare all tools needed for work and tasks in Puerto Rico. Checked inventoried set out for inspection 2nd allocation.

Crew Members Equipment

Class Name/~ombre Total Hrs) Yes/Sij No Unit # Description HRS Unit# Descriptior HRS
nw Dustin Hail 12.5 X 57ME AIR COMPRESSOR 12.5 33ATV A Terrain Vehicle (ATV) 12.5
nw Darrin Hail 125 X 56ME Chain Saw 12.5 32ATV ALL Terrain Vehicle (ATV) 125
nw Robert Dobney 12,5 X S55ME Chain Saw 12.5 31ME Welders Mobile Diesel 12.5
JIwW Paul Deleon 12,5 X S54ME Chain Saw 12.5 30ME Welders Mobile Diesel 12.5
SO Dylan Greenlee 125 X 53ME GENERATOR 12.5 29ME 710 Bgan Sateilite 125
GF Leonard Sanchez 12.5 X 52ME GENERATOR 12,5 oicr Fruck, Pickup 3/4 ton 12.5
JIw Christopher Jamieson 0 X 51ME GENERATOR 12.5 02CT TFruck, Pickup 3/4 ton 12.5

PM Antoinette Greenlee 12.5 X S50ME GENERATOR 125 03CT Fruck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

FV Brian Johnson 12.5 b 49ME GENERATOR 12.5 04CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

Totals 100 48ME GENERATOR 12.5 05CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

47ME GENERATOR 12.5 06CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

46ME GENERATOR 12.5 07CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

45ME GENERATOR 12.5 08CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

44ME GENERATOR 12.5 09CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

43ME GENERATOR 12.5 10CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

42ME GENERATOR 12,5 11FB Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 0

41ME GENERATOR 12.5 12FB Truck, Pickup 3,4 ton 0

40ME GENERATOR 12.5 26WP Wire puller Machine 0

39ME GENERATOR 12.5 27WP Wiire puller Machine 0
3I8ME GENERATOR 12.5 60ME Oxygen & Acetylene 125
n if 375T BOX Office JOB Trailer 12.5 61ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12.5
36ME Tractor, Truck 12.5 62ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12.5

35ME Tractar, Trailer 12.5
34ATV All Terrain Vehicle {ATV) 12.5

WFE
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email To: NG lob #: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration
= FaxTo: |GG Job Name: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restaration Daily Field Labor & Material Report
Contractor: Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat
| Date: October 3, 2017
Total WK Hrs. Start Time 6:00 AM
Foreman: | Management ] 11 End Time: 10:00 PM
Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain: Was any work delayed {could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

None

Work Completed Today

Meeting with Prepa. Setting up transportation around local area. Took pictures of Green line. Recorded meeting of Supe Poma. Lunch
Conference room to discuss all Questions. Meeting went well. We are waiting for flight to view line tomorrow for damage . We were questioned about who we were and our company.
Prepa and Andy will need to be at meeting we were told with us. Then went back to hotel and moved for on the process of material. Not sure what is available need to complete

inventory on all material.

Then Meeting in

Crew Members

Equipment

Class

Name/Nombre

Total Fr:

Yes/Si

No

Unit # Description

HRS

Unit# r

Description HRS

M

James Greenlee

16

N

v.;\\'h.

Cnnslruct: h Mana
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Job #:

Total WK Hrs.

o

Foreman: l Mobilization

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Job Name:
Contractor;

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Whitefish Energy Holdings

Daily Field Labor & Material Report

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat

136

I Date: October 3,2017
Start Time 420 AM
End Time: 1159 PM

Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

Was any work delayed {could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain;

Work Completed Taday

Inventory and recorded serial numbers on equipment and Tools . Recorded weights and measurements of all equipment and tools. Identified all specificaticns on all mechanical items.
Started loading semi box trailer with inventory. Transported office semi trailer and semi from New Mexico to Texas Corporate office to prepare to transport to Puerto Rico. Dylan and

Antoinette waited to receive equipment at office location.

Crew Members Equipment
Class Name/Nombre Total Hrs{ Yes/Si| No Unit# Description HRS Unitd Description HRS
JIw Dustin Hail 12 X 57ME AIR COMPRESSOR 12 33ATV ALL Terraln Vehicle (ATV} 12
Iw Darrin Hail 12 X 56ME Chain Saw 12 32ATV ALL =errain Vehicle (ATV) 12
Iw Robert Dobney 12 X 55ME Chain Saw 12 31ME Weiders Moblle Diesel 12
JIwW Paul Deleon 12 X S54ME Chain Saw 12 30ME Welders Mobile Diesel 12
W Dylan Greenlee 21 X 53ME GENERATOR 12 29ME 710 Bgan Satellite 12
GF Leonard Sanchez 13 b 52ME GENERATOR 12 oicT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 12
Jw Christopher Jamieson 21 X 51ME GENERATOR 12 02CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 12
PM Antoinette Greenlee 21 X S0ME GENERATOR 12 03CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
FM Brian Iohnson 12 X A9ME GENERATOR 12 oacTt Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
Totals 136 48ME GENERATOR 12 05CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
47ME GENERATOR 12 oeCT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
46ME GENERATOR 12 07CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
45ME GENERATOR 12 08CT Truek, Pickup 3/4 ton
44ME GENERATOR 12 09CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
430 GENERATOR 12 10CT Truek, Pickup 3/4 ton
42ME GENERATOR 12 11FB Truek, Pickup 3/4 ton
41ME GENERATOR 12 12FB Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
40ME GENERATOR 12 26WpP Wdre puller Machine
39ME GENERATOR 12 27wWp Wire puller Machine
38ME GENERATOR 12 60ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12
375T BOX Offlce JOB Trailer 12 61ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12
36ME Tractar, Truck 12 62ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12
35ME Tractor, Trailer 12
/ ’ / 34ATV All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) 12
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Email To lob#: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restaration .
Fax To| Job Name: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration Daily Field Labor & Material Report

Contractor; Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat
rDate: October 4, 2017
Total WK Hrs. Start Time 6:00 AM
Foreman: | Management ] 16 End Time: 10:00 PM

Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain: Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

None

Work Completed Today
Went to What to do Prepa Meeting with Jose and Marian. We went to fly the line and we assessed there was not enough room so they proceeded, 1 then went to Blue Line Equipment

and one other rental company to find out availability of equipment. Traffic was very heavy back to Prepa to meet back up with Jose and Marian. Then Met with Andy, Shawn, also to
discuss access to the towers. Discussed having 2 yards for staging on Southside by Saline's.

Crew Members Equipment

Class Name/Nombre Title Hrs.] Yes/Sij] No Unit # Description HRS
CcMm James Greenlee 15 X

Unitdl Deseription HRS

James (Jnn) Greeqlee
Constru n MarNager

WFE
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il To: Job #: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration
Fax To: r Job Name: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration Daily Field Labor & Material Report
Contractor: Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat
I_Date: October 4 ,2017
Total WK Hrs. Start Time 7:00 AM
Foreman: ]_ Mobilization I 112.5 End Time: 6:20 PM
Was any work Impacted (Could rot perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain: Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

Continued to weigh, measure, identify, and load tools and Equipment. Prepare Job Office Trailer with all necessary items.

Work Completed Today
Continued to Weigh Measure and identify specifications for tools and equipment. Continue to Load and Pack equipment and tools in semi Box Trailer. Mobile Office arrived at 2AM.
Opened and started inventory in Job Office Trailer.

Crew Members Equipment
Class Name/Nombre Total Hrsd Yes/Si] No Unit# Description HRS Units Description HRS
nw Dustin Hail 12.5 X S7TME AIR COMPRESSOR 12.5 33ATV ALL “errain Vehicle (ATV) 12.5
Hw Darrin Hail 12.5 X S56ME Chain Saw 12.5 32ATV ALL Terraln Vehicle (ATV) 12.5
nw Robert Dobney 12.5 x S55ME Chain Saw 12,5 31ME Weiders Mabhile Diesel 12.5
nw Paul Deleon 12.5 X S54ME Chain Saw 12.5 30ME Welders Mabile Diesel 12.5
SO Dylan Greenlee 12.5 X 53ME GENERATOR 12,5 29ME 710 Bgan Satellite 12.5
GF Leonard Sanchez 12.5 X 52ME GENERATOR 12.5 01cT Truzk, Pickup 3/4 ton 12.5
Hw Christopher Jamieson 12.5 X 51ME GENERATOR 12.5 02CcT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 12.5|
PM Antoinette Greenlee 12.5 X S50ME GENERATOR 12.5 03CT Truzk, Pickup 3/4 ton
FM Brian Johnson 12.5 X 49ME GENERATOR 12.5 04CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
Totals 112.5 43ME GENERATOR 12.5 05CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
47ME GENERATOR 12.5 06CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
46ME GENERATOR 12.5 07CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
45ME GENERATOR 12.5 08CT Track, Pickup 3/4 ton
44ME GENERATOR 12.5 0sCT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
43ME GENERATOR 12.5 10CT Track, Pickup 3/4 ton
42ME GENERATOR 12.5 11FB Trock, Pickup 3/4 ton
41ME GENERATOR 12.5 12FB Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton
40ME GENERATOR 12.5 26WP Wire puller Machine
39ME GENERATOR 12.5 27WP Wise puller Machine
'. 38ME GENERATOR 12.5 60ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12.5
‘ =28  — 375T BOX Office JOB Traller 12.5 61ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12,5
p——_. iy m A M“ 36ME Tractor, Truck 12.5 62ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12.5)
l/ 35ME Tractor, Traller 12.5
i /) / 34ATV All Terraln Vehicle (ATV) 12.5
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Job Name:

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Exhibit 10

Contractor:

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Daily Field Labor & Material Report
Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thars Fri Sat
| Date: October 5, 2017
Total WK Hrs. Start Time 6:00 AM
Foreman: l Management | 18 End Time: 12Midnight
Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain: Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:
None
Work Completed Today
Waited at hotel for GPS pin job location until 10:30 am. then we went to power plant on the south side of the island Spoke with operations manager at site walked site to view
availability to put equipment and office trailer. Very positive affective meeting. Look at area to build towers on the ground and assemble Then came back to hotel ate dinner worked on
AR&J Steels Crew until midnight with all phone calls to incoming crews.
Crew Members Equipment
Class Name/Number Title Hrs.| Yes/Si] No Unit # Description HRS Unitit [ Description HRS
v James Greenlee 18 X

Construcliqn M

wWFE
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Email To:
Fax To:

Foreman: |

Mobilization

Job #: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration
Job Name: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration Daily Field Labor & Material Report
Contractor: Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat
| oate: October 5, 2017
Total WK Hrs. Start Time 7:00 AM
| 112.5 End Time: 6:30 PM

Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO -1f YES explain:

Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

NONE

Work Completed Today

Continued to Weigh Measure and identify specifications for tools and equipment. Continue to Load and Pack equipment and tools in semi Box Trailer. Mobike Office arrived at 2AM.
Opened and started inventory in Job Office Trailer. Had all new tires put on Job Trailer, Tool trailer, and Semi

Crew Members Equipment
Class Name/Nombre Total Hrs) “es/Sif No Unit# Description HRS uinitd Deseription I HRS

Jiw Dustin Hail 12.5 X 57ME AIR COMPRESSOR 12.5 33ATV ALL Terrain Vehicle ATV) 12.5
nw Darrin Hail 12.5 X 56ME Chain Saw 125 32ATV ALL "errain Vehicle (ATV) 12.5
JIW Robert Dobney 12.5 X 55ME Chain Saw 12.5 31ME Welders Mablle Diesel 12.5
JIwW Paul Deleon 12.5 X 54ME Chain Saw 12.5 30ME Welders Mobile Dissel 12.5
50 Dylan Greenlee 12.5 X 53ME GENERATOR 12.5 29ME 710 Bgan Satellite 12,5
GF Leonard Sanchez 12.5 X 52ME GENERATOR 12.5 01CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 12.5
JIW Christopher Jamieson 12.5 X 51ME GENERATOR 125 02CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 12.5

PM Antoinette Greenlee 12.5 X S0ME GENERATOR 12.5 03CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton

FM Brian Johnson 12.5 X 49ME GENERATOR 12.5 04CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton

Totals 112.5 48ME GENERATOR 12.5 05CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton

47ME GENERATOR 12.5 06CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton

46ME GENERATOR 125 07CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton

45ME GENERATOR 12.5 08CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton

44ME GENERATOR 12.5 09CT Track, Pickup 3/4 ton

43ME GENERATOR 12,5 10CT Track, Pickup 3/4 ton

42ME GENERATOR 12,5 11FB Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton

41ME GENERATOR 125 12FB Track, Pickup 3/4 ton

40%.E GENERATOR 12.5 26WP Wire puller Machine

_— 39ME GENERATOR 12,5 27WP Wire puller Machine
. o 38ME GENERATOR 12.5 60ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12.5
b 375T BOX Office 108 Traller 12,5 61ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12.5]
im) G tﬂQ‘Z\) 36ME Tractor, Truck 125 62ME Oxygen & Acetylene 12.5

Construction Mandger 35ME Tractor, Trailer 12.5
A / 34ATV All Terraln Vehicle (ATV) 12.5

@ WFE
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Email To: NN .ob#: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Fax To: _ Job Name: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration Daily Field Labor & Material REpOl‘t
Contractor: Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat
| Date: October 6, 2017
Total WK Hrs. Start Time 6:00 AM
Foreman: I Management I 18 End Time: Midnight
Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain: Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:
None
Work Completed Today

Went for Meeting with Prepa then to Material yard Stayed there about 4 hours then came back to hotel to move to Intercontinental Hotel and get things ready for A&J Steel Team to
Arrive, Once at Intercontinental went and had dinner then meeting until Midnight.

Crew Members Equipment
Class Name/Nombre Total rs] Yes/Sif No Unlt # Description HRS Unit# | Description HRS
(o)) James Greenlee 18 X
]
]
e
9 N J e T
JamM ) Greenlge
Constructs Manaje
/’ﬁ [
{
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_ Email To| Job #: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration
Fax Tr Job Name: Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration Daily Field Labor & Material Report
Contractor: Whitefish Energy Holdings Sun Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat
| Dpate: October 6,2017
Total WK Hrs Start Time 7:00 AM
Foreman: | Mobilization l 138.5 End Time: 12:30 PM
Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain: Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:
Work Completed Today
Received Crew Trucks and checked in and inspected. Prepared all items for transport. Got everyone prepared to leave for Puerto Rico. Drove to DFW to Fly out in the merning
Crew Members Equipment

Class Name/Nombre Ttl Hrs | Yes/Sij No Unit# Description HRS UnitH Description l HRS
JIw Dustin Hail 14.5 x 57ME AR COMPRESSOR 14.5 33ATV ALL Terrain Vehicle (ATV) 14.5
JIw Darrin Hail 14.5 X 56ME Chain Saw 14.5 32ATV ALL "errain Vehicle (ATV) 145
Jiw Robert Dobney 14.5 X 55ME Chain Saw 14.5 31ME Welders Mobile Diesel 14.5
Jiw Paul Deleon 14.5 X S54ME Chain Saw 14.5 30ME Welders Mobile Diese! 14.5
SO Dylan Greenlee 16.5 X 53ME GENERATOR 14.5 29ME 710 Bgan Satellite 145
GF Leonard Sanchez 16.5 X 52ME GENERATOR 14,5 01CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
JwW Christopher Jamieson 14.5 X 51ME GENERATOR 14.5 02CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
PM Antoinette Greenlee 16.5 X S50ME GENERATOR 14.5 03CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 145
FM Brian Johnson 16.5 X 49ME GENERATOR 14.5 04CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
Totals 138.5 48ME GENERATOR 14.5 05CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
47ME GENERATOR 14.5 06CT Truxck, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
46ME GENERATOR 14.5 07CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
45ME GENERATOR 14.5 08CT Truek, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
44ME GENERATOR 14.5 09CT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 145
43ME GENERATOR 14.5 io0cT Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
42ME GENERATOR 14.5 11FB Truek, Pickup 3/4 ton 14.5
41IME GENERATOR 14.5 12FB Truek, Pickup 3/4 ton 145
40ME GENERATOR 14.5 26Wp Wire puller Machine 145
39ME GENERATOR 14.5 27wWp Wire puller Machine 14.5
38ME GENERATOR 14.5 60ME Oxygen & Acetylene 14.5
James @) Green\ge 375T BOX Offlce JOB Traller 14.5 61ME Oxygen & Acetylene 145

ConstmatibmMinager 36ME Tractor, Truck 14.5 62ME Oxygen & Acetylene " 1as|
A / 35ME Tractor, Traller 14.5
/ / / 34ATV All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) 14.5
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Foreman:

[ Management

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restaration

Puerto Rico Hurricane Restoration

Whitefish Energy Holdings

Daily Field Labor & Material Report

Sun Meon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat

email To: [N Job #:
=~ Fax To: ||| N Job Name:
Contractor:
Total WK Hrs.

| Date: October 7, 2017
Start Time 4:30 AM
71 End Time: 12:30 AM

Was any work Impacted (Could not perform work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

Was any work delayed (could not start or complete work as planned): YES NO - If YES explain:

None

Work Completed Today

Antoinette, Leonard ,and Brian Mobilized from Dallas to Puerto Rico arrived and was taken by shuttle to Hotel to check in and then Jim picked us up at hotel.

Jim started the day

off by morning meeting. Going to Rent a jeep in order to meet Rental company for crane then picked up A&J Steel Staff. We all went to Arecibo to assess the Roads and access. We then
met with Crane company and to let them look at what we had for them to do site specifics. Then traveled back to San Juan discussed all site specifics with team and crew list . Antoinette
went over all job documentation requirements with Lyman also was introduced to team.

Crew Members Equipment
Class Name/Nombre Total Brsd Yes/Si| No Unit # Description HRS Unit# I Description HRS
cMm James Greenlee 18.5 X
PM Antoinette Greenlee 17.5 X
GF Leonard Sanchez 17.5 X
FOR Brain Johnson 17.5 X
71

r 13
Constructibn Yianag r
<

VAV74
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From:  Andy Techmansk: [

Sent: Sunday, October 15, 2017 12:02 AM

To:  Ramon O Caldas Pagan [

Cc: GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ
Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarad

>: John Slates

. Taylor Hwong
; Kent McNellie

Subject: Re: PREPA - Whitefish
Attach: 246816964 v 1 WhiteFish Contract Revised (1).DOCX

Ramon,

Great idea. | have cc John Slates who will be able to discuss with your attorneys, our position on the provisions
of this document.

Regards,
Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

www.whitefishenergy.com

From: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Sent: Saturday, October 14, 2017 9:40 PM

To: Andy Techmanski

Cc: GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ; Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarado
Subject: FW: PREPA - Whitefish

Hello Andy,

This is the contract with comments from our lawyers. If it is possible they want it to contact your counsel. This will help to make the
process more easy and fast.

Best regards,

From: MitchellN@gtlaw.com
Sent; Saturday, October 14, 2017 4:24 PM
To: amon O Caldas Pagan

PREPAO000896
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Fernando M. Padilla;_ Delis Tamara Zambrana Colon; Mireya Rodriguez Fernandez

Subject: RE: PREPA - Whitefish
Forgot the attachment.

Also, if it is helpful, we would also be happy to talk directly to Whitefish's counsel. On some of this, having our government
contracting team speak directly to them might actually make if easier. Let us know how we can help.

Nancy A. Mitchell

New York Co-Managing Shareholder
Greenberg Traurig, LLP | MetLife Building
200 Park Avenue | New York, NY 10166

I | S | I S N <t com

From: Mitchell, Nancy A (Shid-NY-CP-Bky)

Sent; Saturday, October 14, 2017 4:21 PM

To: Cleary, David (Shid-Phx-Bky); Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Cc: Prusock, Melissa {Assoc-DC-GvtCntr); Nelson Morales Rivera; JAVIER MORALES TANON; Schaengold, Michael J. (Shid-DC-
GvtCntr); Bradel, Ryan C. (OfCnsl-DC-GvtCntr); Fernahdo M. Padilla; _; Delis Tamara
Zambrana Colon; Mireya Rodriguez Fernandez

Subject: RE: PREPA - Whitefish

Attached is a blackline of the Contract that reflects our comments. We have included both the provisions required by FEMA and
provisions that we understand are required under Puerto Rico law. Since we are not licensed in Puerto Rico, you may want to have
this reviewed by a local firm {l understand the provisions we included came from PMA).

Please note that in the markup, we noted the time and materials contract pricing. Cost-plus isn't permitted but time and materials is
if it is the only way to price the contract. If you are going to proceed with a time and materials contract, it is critical to document why
that pricing was appropriate and why a fixed price or other type of permitted contract pricing is not appropriate. If you would like to
talk to our government contracting team about the pricing provisions and how to accomplish what you are trying to achieve, I'm
sure they would be happy to get on the phone.

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Nancy A. Mitchell
New York Co-Managing Shareholder
Greenberg Traurig, LLP | Metlife Building
200 Park Avenue [ _New York, NY 10166
e I —
From: Cleary, David (Shid-Phx-Bky)
Sent: Saturday, October 14, 2017 1:34 AM
To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan
Cc: Prusock, Melissa {Assoc-DC-GviCntr); Nelson Morales Rivera; JAVIER MORALES TANON; Mitchell, Nancy A {Shid-NY-CP-Bky);
Schaengold, Michael J. {Shid-DC-GvtCntr); Bradel, Ryan C. (OfCnsl-DC-GvtCntr); Fernando M. Padilla;
elis Tamara Zambrana Colon; Mireya Rodriguez Fernandez
Subject: Re: PREPA - Whitefish

Ok. I will be out of pocket for a bit today. Some one on my team will let you know. Thanks.

David D. Cleary
Greenberg Traurig

2013 U.S. News-Best Lawyers(R) "Law Firm of the Year" in Bankruptcy & Creditor Debtor Rights/ Insolvency & Reorganization Law
and Litigation -Bankruptcy
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>0On Oct 14, 2017, at 1:26 AM, Ramon O Caldas Pagan wrote:
>

> Hello Cleary,

>

> This is the contract draft version accepted by Whitefish.

>

> Let us know if you need anything else from us.

>

> Best regards,

>

>R

>

>

>

> From: clearyd@gtlaw.com [clearyd@gtlaw.com]

> Sent; Friday, October 13, 2017 7:41 PM

> To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

> Cc : Nelson Morales Rivera; JAVIER MORALES TANON;

> Fernando M. Padilla Delis

> Tamara Zambrana Colon; Mireya Rodriguez Fernandez
> Subject: Re: PREPA - Whitefish

>

> Thanks.

>

> David D. Cleary

> Greenberg Traurig

>
> 2013 U.S. News-Best Lawyers({R) "Law Firm of the Year" in Bankruptcy &
> Creditor Debtor Rights/ Insolvency & Reorganization Law and Litigation
> -Bankruptcy

>

>>0n Oct 13, 2017, at 7:33 PM, Ramon O Caldas Pagan wrote:

>>

>> Cleary,

>>

Exhibit 11

>> What Andy sent is a draft version with the new articles sent by Nancy and the comments and suggestions of Christopher (FEMA).

At this moment we are waiting for there comments and questions.
>>

>> As soon as they complete the revision we are going to send it to your evaluation. They are supposed to send their comments

during the next two hours.
>>

>> Regards,
>>

>>R

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>
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>> Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 6:14 PM
>>To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan

Nelson Morales Rivera; JAVIER MORALES TANON;

>> Fernando M. Padilla;
>>Tamara Zambrana Colon; Mireya Rodriguez Fernandez
>> Subject: Re: PREPA - Whitefish

>>

>> | just got a call from Kent with Whitefish and he said that he received the contract from his CEO, the contract was finished and

they agreed. | told him that | had not seen it and would check. Any update?
>>

>> David D. Cleary

>> Greenberg Traurig

>>
>> 2013 U.S. News-Best Lawyers(R} "Law Firm of the Year" in Bankruptcy &

>> Creditor Debtor Rights/ Insolvency & Reorganization Law and

>> Litigation -Bankruptcy

>>

>>0n Oct 13, 2017, at 1:55 PM, Ramon O Caldas Pagan > wrote:

>>

>>

>> Good afternoon,

>>

>>

>>

>> At this moment we are working with the user and the supplier in order to send the latest version with all the recommendations.
>>

>

>>

>> We expect to send you the document in an hour and a half.

>>

>>

>>

>> Regards,

>>

>>

>>

>> R

>>

>>

>>

>> [clearyd @ gtlaw.com]
>> Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 1:43 PM
>>To:
>> Rivera; JAVIER MORALES TANON; Ramon O Caldas Pagan
>> Cc:

; Nelson Morales

com>; Fernando M. Padilla;

>> Subject: RE: PREPA - Whitefish
>>

>> In order to keep things moving, please see Melissa's email below. She has gone back and designed each deficient paragraph or
topic as REQUIRED or RECOMMENDED. Therefore, when you are reviewed the items for revision into the contract you can base your
decisions using that criteria also.

>>
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>> Additionally, we still need:
>>
>> - The proposed revisions that Ramon sent to FEMA; and
>>
>> - The contract in word format if you would like GT to modify it.
>> Thanks.
>>
>> David D. Cleary
>> Greenberg Traurig, LLP

>> From: Nelson Morales Rivera
>> Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 7:55 PM
>>To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan; JAVIER MORALES TARON

>> Cc: GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ; Ricardo L. Ramos Rodriguez; Cleary, David

>> (Shild-Phx-Bky)

>> Subject: Fwd: PREPA - Whitefish

>>

>> Ramon/Javier,

>>

>> It is extremely important that PREPA incorporate the amendments to the contract with Whitefish pursuant to the
recommendations by Greenberg Traurig (GT) to ensure there are no issues when we seek reimbursement from FEMA.

>>

>> Please coordinate ASAP with GT.

>>

>> Thanks,

>>

>> Nelson

>>

>> Sent from my iPhone

>

>> Begin forwarded message:

>> From: >

>> Date: October 12, 2017 at 5:45:01 PM AST

>>To: >,

>> >,

>> >

>> Cel >,

>> >

>> >

>> Subject: Re: PREPA - Whitefish

>> Nelson/Javier(also, please forward to Laura as | don't have her email), we obviously are still awaiting word from FEMA per below,
but below are comments form GT's government contracts/FEMA team who were instrumental in putting together the contract
template.

>>

>> Based on our earlier discussion, | assume that Whitefish is still working. We can start working on amendments to the contract in
advance of hearing from FEMA. last us now how you want to proceeed.

>

>> David D. Cleary

>> Shareholder

>> Greenberg Traurig, LLP

>>
>> On Oct 12, 2017, at 3:46 PM, Prusock, Melissa {Assoc-DC-GvtCntr) > wrote:

>>
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>> Dave,
_>_>
>> Below please find an analysis of the issues with the PREPA contract with Whitefish executed on September 26, 2017.
>>
>> Issues with the Existing Provisions of the Contract
2
Z__}_
>> 1. Required: Specify damages and other remedies available to PREPA for contractor breach in Section 4.4. Section 4.4 of the
contract provides that PREPA can terminate the contract in the event of a breach, but does not provide that PREPA may seek
damages or other remedies. The contract should specify that PREPA may seek damages or other available remedies in the event of
contractor breach.
>>
>_>__
>> 2. Required: Limit contractor termination rights in Section 4.5 to material breach. Section 4.5 allows the contractor to terminate
the contract upon breach by PREPA. At a minimum, this clause should be limited to a material breach. It is unusual to allow the
contractor to terminate the gsovernment for breach. In Federal Government contracts, a contractor can terminate a government
contract only in very rare circumstances where there is a very material breach. Otherwise, in Federal Government contracts, the
contractor must continue o perform pending the outcome of the dispute. See FAR 52.233-1(i) {"The Contractor shall proceed
diligently with performance of this contract, pending final resolution of any request for relief, claim, appeal, or action arising under
the contract, and comply with any decision of the Contracting Officer.").
>>
>>
>> 3. Required: Change contractor termination right in Section 5.4 to right to receive equitable adjustment for suspension of work.
Section 5.4 of the contract allows the contractor to terminate the contract if PREPA suspends work for more than 15 days. This is
very unusual and should not be included in the contract. At most, the contract should allow for an equitable adjustment for
suspension of work that negatively impacts the contractor.
>>
>>
>> 4. Required: Ensure changes are within the scope of the Federal grant used to fund the project. Article 7 suggests that PREPA may
order changes outside the scope of the contract. To be eligible for reimbursement under a FEMA grant, the cost of the change,
meodification, change order, or constructive change must be allowable, allocable, within the scope of its grant or cooperative
agreement, and reasonable for the completion of project scope.
>>
>_>
>> 5. Required: Justify decision to use time and materials contract and include a "not to exceed" amount. Article 7 states "Payment
shall be Time and Materials at the following rates[.]" (Emphasis added.) Since PREPA is a state agency, technically there is no
prohibition on using time and materials contracts. However, all costs must still be allowable under the Federal cost principles (2 CFR
200 Subpart E) if Federal grant funds are used to pay for the project. If PREPA cannot justify its decision to contract on a time and
materials basis (i.e., by demonstrating that no other contracting method was suitable), it is possible that FEMA could find the costs
incurred under the contract unreasonable. If PREPA believes a time and materials contract is appropriate, the contract should
include a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk.
>>
>>
>> 6. Required: Provide FEMA with access to work sites. Article 9, Access to work, provides that the contractor must give PREPA
access to worksites. The contract must also include the following statement: "The Contractor agrees o provide the FEMA
Administrator or his authorized representatives access to work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the Contract."
>>
2
>> 7. Recommended, but not required. Article 11 contains track changes. Revise the contract to eliminate the terms that have been
crossed out.
>>
>>
>> 8. Required: Revise the timeframes in "Termination” and "Breach" provisions to make them consistent with each other. The
timeframes in Article 14 "Termination" conflicts with the timeframes in Section 4.4 (Breach by the contractor).
>_>__
>> Article 14(1) states PREPA may terminate the contract if the Contractor "substantially breaches the service obligation, which does
not otherwise have a specified contractual remedy, and fails to cure the breach within thirty (30) days of notice from PREPA; or fails
to commence to cure the breach and diligcently proceed with the cure if it is hot possible to cure within thirty {30) days of such
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notice."
_>_>
>> Section 4.4 states "Upon written notice to Contractor from PREPA stating that Contractor is in breach of the Contract, Contractor
will immediately remedy such breach. Where Contractor fails to remedy such breach within ten (10) days or to promptly initiate and
continue in good faith to remedy a breach that cannot be reasonably remedied in ten (10) days, PREPA will have the right to
terminate the Contract upon five (5} days' notice to Contractor.
Z__}_
>>
>> 9. Required: Add "Assignment"” and "Subcontracting" clauses from the GT template. Article 23, Assignment and subcontractors,
says "Not Applicable”. Why is this not applicable? The assignment and subcontracting clauses from the template we provided should
be included.
>>
>_>__
>> 10. Required: Add a clause requiring modifications to be in writing.
>_>__
>> Recommended: revise "Novation"” clause to clarify meaning.
2>
22
_>_>
>> Article 24, Novation, states:
>>
>>
>>The Contractor and PREPA expressly agree that no amendment or-change order which could be made to this Contract, during its
term, shall be understood as a contractual novation, unless both parties agree to the contrary, specifically and in writing. This
previous provision shall be equally applicable in such other cases where PREPA gives the Contractor a time extension for the
compliance of any of its obligations under the Contract or where PREPA dispenses the claim or demand of any of its credits or rights
under this Contract.
>>
>> A novation occurs when one of the parties to the contract is replaced. This provision does not make any sense. Is this supposed to
be a "modifications” clause prohibiting modifications or amendments. to the contract unless expressly agreed in writing?
>_>_
>_>__
>> 11, Recommended: Consider eliminating mutual indemnity clause. Article 41 contains a mutual indemnity. Government agencies
rarely agree to such a clause. While' PREPA is not prohibited from including this clause, the cost of indemnifying the contractor under
this clause would not be an allowable cost under federal grants, and would have to be exclusively borne by PREPA.
_>_>
>>
_>_>
>> 12, Required: Eliminate cost plus percentage of cost provision; Justify use of time and materials contract and include ceiling price;
Ensure meals and lodging costs comply with Federal cost principles, As noted previously, Article 44 contains a cost plus percentage
of cost element, and is not permissible. An email forwarded to us earlier today by Dave, which is from Nancy to Jose Morales at
FEMA, states that the following change to Article 44 has been proposed:
>>
>> "The Contractor shall submit to PREPA all contract costs outside of Contractor's internal rates in Schedule 1, as updated per this
Contract, on a time and materials basis. Such costs shall be reasonable and customary and, for third party contracts, include an
allocation for Contractor's program management and oversight of such third party contracts. Costs related to meals and lodging shall
be the reasonable and actual costs incurred. [Nancy: there is a lot of cost incurred in the management of these, so we are struggling
with possibly offering this provision, but our interpretation of various guidelines was that this may be a strict prohibition (Food &
Lodging 'markup']"
>>
>> While this is an improvement ogver the prior provision, please note the concerns we raised above about using time and materials
contracts. If time and materials is going to be used, there must be a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk.
2
>> Response to the comment in brackets: Travel costs (such as meals and lodging) must be comply with 2 CFR § 200.474, "travel
costs,” which provides, "Travel costs are the expenses for transportation, lodging, subsistence, and related items incurred by
emplovees who are in travel status on official business of the non-Federal entity [note: PREPA is the non-federal entity herel. Such
costs may be charged on an actual cost basis, on a per diem or mileage basis in lieu of actual costs incurred, or on a combination of
the two, provided the method used is applied to an entire trip and not to selected days of the trip, and results in charges consistent
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with those normally allowed in like circumstances in the non-Federal entity's non-federally-funded activities and in accordance with
non-Federal entity's written travel reimbursement policies."

>>
>> Required: Add Missing Required Contract Clauses:

2>

>> In addition to the above, the following required clauses from the template are missing:
Z__}_

>>

>> 1. Bonding

>>

>> 2. Termination settlement

>>

>> 3. Clean water and air

>>

>> 4. The full Equal Opportunity clause

>>

>> 5. Records retention

>>

>> 6. Prohibition on contracting with suspended and debarred parties
>>

>> 7. Compliance with law and acknowledgement of FEMA funding
>>

>> 8. DHS logos

>>

>> 9. Federal access to records clause

>>

>> 10. Program fraud

>>

>> 11. Procurement of recovered materials

>>

>> 12, Contract work hours and safety standards

>_>_

>> 13. Byrd anti-lobbying certification

>_>

>> 14, No obligation by Federal government

_>_>

>> 15, Disaster assistance survivor registrant data (if applicable)}

_>_>

>> 16. Reporting requirements

>>

>> 17. Provisions required by law deemed inserted

>

>> As noted above, there also does not appear to be an assignments clause, a subcontracting clause, or a coherent modifications
clause. The notices clause is also not filled in for the contractor.

>>

>> Recommended: Add Recommended Clauses that Were Not Included:
>>

>> Additignally, the following recommended clauses were not included:
2

>> 1. Costs

>>

>> 2. Financial management

2

>> 3. Penalties, fines, and disallowed costs

>_>__

>> 4, Notice of FEMA reporting requirements

_>2

>> 5, Agreement to execute other required documents
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>>

_>_>

>>

>> Plegse note that there are other recommended clauses that were |eft out {e.g., age discrimination, energy efficiency, other civil
rights requirements), but these are the most important ones.

2

Z__}_

P

>> Best regards,
>>

>>
>>

>> Melissa

>>

>_>_

>>

>> Melissa Prusock

>> Associate

LLP | 2101 L Street N.W. | Washington, D.C. 20037

>>om> | www.gtlaw.com<http://www.gtlaw.com>>

>> From: Cleary, David {Shld-Phx-Bky}

>> Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 2:54 PM

>> To: Prusock, Melissa (Assoc-DC-GviCntr); Schaengold, Michael J.

>> (Shid-DC-GvtCntr)

>» Cc: Mitchell, Nancy A (Shid-NY-CP-Bky); Bradel, Ryan C.

>> (OfCnsl-DC-GvtCntr)

>> Subject: RE: PREPA - Whitefish

>>

>> Thanks. Will look for it, and PREPA will want to work on a real time basis revising it with the team. So, suggest how vou want to
coordinate. Thanks.

_>_>
>> David D, Cleary

>> Greenberg Traurig, LLP

>> From: Prusock, Melissa {Assoc-DC-GvtCntr)

>> Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 12:09 PM

>> To: Schaengold, Michael J. (Shid-DC-GutCntr); Cleary, David
>> (Shid-Phx-Bky)

>> Cc: Mitchell, Nancy A (Shid-NY-CP-Bky); Bradel, Ryan C.

>> {OfCnsl-DC-GvtCntr)

>> Subject: RE: PREPA - Whitefish

>>

>> Dave,

2>

>> | am preparing a detailed list of problems with the contract. | am on a plane with very slow internet, | apologize if my responses
are a bit slow.

_>2

>> Melissa
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>>
>> Melissa Prusock
>> Associate
>> Greenberg Trauri

LLP | 2101 L Street N.W. | Washington, D.C. 20037

> >>om> | www.gtlaw.com<http://www.gtlaw.com>>

>>
>>
>>
>>
>>

>> From: Schaengold, Michael J. (Shld-DC-GvtCntr)

>> Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 12:.05 PM

>>» To: Cleary, David {Shid-Phx-Bky)

>> Cc: Mitchell, Nancy A (Shid-NY-CP-Bky): Prusock, Melissa

>> (Assoc-DC-GviCntr); Bradel, Ryan C. {OfCnsl-DC-GvtCntr)

>> Subject: RE: PREPA - Whitefish

_>_>

>> The statements by the FEMA atiorney are consistent with the advice that Melissa has been providing.
>

>> Michael J. Schaengold

>> Shareholder
>> Greenberg Traurig, LLP | 2101 | Street N.W. | Washin

>> www.gtlaw.com<http://www.gtlaw.com>>

>> From: Cleary, David (Shid-Phx-Bky)
>> Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 11:54 AM
>>To: Nelson Morales Rivera

>

>> Ce: Mitchell, Nancy A (Shld-NY-CP-Bky); Schaengold, Michael J.

>> (Shid-DC-GvtCntr); Prusock, Melissa {Assoc-DC-GvtCntr); Bradel, Ryan

>> C, (OfCnsl-DC-GvtCntr)

>> Subject: FW: PREPA - Whitefish

_>_>

>> Please see below. Ramon- when you have a moment, can you please forward the proposed modifications that you sent to Chris.
Thanks. Also, Javier, | do not have Laura's email, can you forward? Thank you,

>>

>> David D. Cleary

>> Greenberg Traurig, LLP
A

>> From; Zavala-Garcia, Graciela

>> Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 11:42 AM
>> To: Mitchell, Nancy A (Shld-NY-CP-Bky}; Cleary, David (Shid-Phx-Bky)

>> Cc: Morales, Jose; Harich, Christopher; Rios, Rosa

>> Subject: FW: PREPA - Whitefish

>>

>> Ms. Mitchell:

>>

>> | am an attorney working for FEMA in Puerto Rico. Jose has asked me to respond to your email below. We have elevated this
contract issue to our Headquarters Office of Chief Counsel. It has been concluded that the PREPA contract does not contain some
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necessary provisions, Please see the following websites for aids that have been developed that can assist in this'endeavor:
>>
>> The Appendix Il to Part 200 of 2 C.F.R. contract provisions can be
>> found here:
>> https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=htips-3A _ www.ecfr.sov_cgi
>>-2Dbin_text-2Didx-3FSID-3Db1b13e64d9¢7ba2bflb112db940599¢eb-26mc-3Dtru
>> e-26node-3Dap2.1.200-5F1521.ii-26rgn-3Ddivo&d=DwIFAg&c=2s2mvbfYOUoSKk
>> 16_Ol9wg&r=5Aj-T1gZVhgyGFOHFMdy7i3dGZKIvGd3VpadAngyylE&m=69MzWMLMmsSX2
>> CGcHZFUIDUUMIBjoANH6E_eZ6alvGgP8&s=cR5jQ6IWaTl_utxQcdB6F6nVItPnJAF-Lil
>> tTjUKuZI&e=
>>
>> Here's a link to the template that I've attached:
>> https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A _ www.fema.gov_med
>> ia-2Dlibrary-2Ddata_1483976790556-2D96bfcf3bf2c64e94d6f63dd4169a7d2¢_
>> RequiredContractClauses2C.F.R.200.326and2C.F.R.Part200Appendixli10917
>> . pdf&d=DwlFAg&c=2s2mvbfYOUoSKkl6_OI9wg&r=5Aj-T1gZVhgyGFIHFMdy7i3dGZKI
>>vGd3VpadAngyylE&m=68MzWMLmsSX2CGcHZFUIDUUMI8joANH6_eZ6alvGgP8&s=0CEdO
>> G_IKOzScVTrar-yfYEebdl4CWs3UGimBP-npV8&e=
>>
>> In addition, as long as PREPA is a state agency, they must follow the laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico for procurement
and contracts. Lastly, FEMA Public Assistance will make the determination as to the reasonableness of the costs.
>>
>> Graciela E. Zavala-Garcia
>> Lead Legal Advisor, Office of Chief Counsel Federal Emergency
>> Management Agency DR-4339-PR
>>

>>
>> This communication, along with any attachments, is covered by federal and state law governing electronic communications and
may contain confidential and legally privileged information. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, use or-copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this in
error, please reply immediately to the sender and delete this message. Thank you.

>> FEMA: Compassion. Fairness. Integrity. Respect.

>>
>>

>>

> mmm Original Message-----
>> From:

>> Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 12:01 PM

>>To: Morales, Jose

>

>> Subject: PREPA - Whitefish

>>

>> This is the Whitefish Contract. They have a cost-plus concept in here. As a result, they have tried to correct that with the language
below. Their issue is that they subcontract so they need 1o be able to get paid to manage those suhcontractors. Let me know who
best to talk to about this so | can help them provide guidance.

>

>>

>> DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

>>

>> Replace exiting language in Article 44 with the following:

>>

>> The Contractor shall submit to PREPA all contract costs outside of

>> Contractor's internal rates in Schedule 1, as updated per this

>> Contract, on a time and materials basis. Such costs shall be

>> reasonable and customary and, for third party contracts, include an

>> allocation for Contractor's program management and oversight of such
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>> third party contracts. Costs related to meals and lodging shall be
>> the reasonable and actual costs incurred. [Nancy: there is a lot of
>> cost incurred in the management of these, so we are struggling with
>> possibly offering this provision, but our interpretation of various

>> guidelines was that this may be a strict prohibition {Food & Lodging
>> 'markup'}]

>>

>> Nancy A. Mitchell

>> New York Co-Managing Shareholder

>> Greenberg Traurig, LLP | Metlife Building

>> 200 Park Avenye | New York, NY 10166 Tel 212.801.3085 | Fax

>>

>

>> - If you are not an intended recipient of confidential and privileged

Exhibit 11

>>w.com> | www.gtlaw.com<http://www.gtlaw.com>>

>> information in this email, please delete it, notify us immediately at postmaster@gtlaw.com<mailto:postmaster@gtlaw.com>, and

do not use or disseminate such information.
>

><171014_EMERGENCY CONTRACT FOR PREPAS ELECTRICAL GRID REPAIR -

> HURRICANE MARIA- WHITEFISH.docx>
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M_ ....................

Redacted

From: ZaVale;-Garcia GracielaP
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2( !
To: Mitchell, Nancy A (Shid-NY-CP-Bky); Cleary, David (Shid-Phx-Bky)

Ce: Vloralp%, Jose; Harich, Christopher; Rios, Rosa
Subject: FW: PREPA - Whitefish

Ms. Mitchell:

1 am an attorney working for FEMA in Puerto Rico. Jose has asked me to réspond to your émail below. We have elevated this contract issue to our Headquarters Office of Chief
Counsel. It has been concluded that the PREPA contract does not contain some necessary provisions. Please see the following websites for aids that have been develeped that can
assist in this endeavor:

The Appendix II to Part 200 of 2 C.F.R. contract provisions can be found here: hitps://urldefense proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A_ www.ecfr.gov_cgi-2Dbin_text-2Didx-3FSID-
3Db1b13e64d9c7ba2bfl b1 12db940599%¢h-26mic-3Dtrue-26node-3Dap2.1.200-5F1521.1i-26rgn-3Ddivo&d=DwIF Ag&c= -2s2mvbfY 0UoSKkI6 _Ol9wedu=3Aj-

T1gZ VheyGFYHFMdy 7i3dGZKIvGd3Vpad Angyy 1 E&m=69MzWMLms SX2CGeHZFUIDuUMIBj0ANH6_eZ6alvGeP8&s=cRSjQ6IWaTl_utxQedB6F6nV IGtPnIAf-
LItTiURuZI&e=

7D96bfcf ibf2064c94d6f63dd4169;17d2cWRLqulrf:dContmct(‘lausgsZ(/ FR. 2()0 326and7(‘ FR. PaﬁZOOAppenleHl 0917. pdf&d DWIFAU &= 2s2mvbﬂ 0UeSKkl6_Ol9wgi=5Aj-
TlgZVhgyGFOHFMdy7i3dGZKIvGd3Vpad Angyy 1 E&m=69Mz WML msSX2CGeHZFUIDuUMIg jo ANHG _eZ6alvGgP8&s=0CEd0G IKOzScVTrdr-yiYEe6dl4CWe3UGmBP-
npV8&e=

Ih addition, as lohg as PREPA is a state agency, they must follow the laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico for precurement and contracts. Lastly, FEMA Public Assistance
will make the determination as to the reasonableness of the costs.

Gracigla E. Zavala-Garcia

Tcad Leial Advisor| Office of Chief Counsel Federal Emergency Management Agency DR-4339-PR

This communication, along with any attachments, is covered by federal and state law governing electronic communications and may contain confidential and legally privileged
information. If the reader.of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, use or copying of this message is strictly
prohibited. If vou have received this in error; please reply immediately to the sender and delete this message. Thank you.

FEMA: Compassion. Fairness. Intégrity. Respect,

From: Mitchell

Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 12:01 PM
To: Morales, Jose

Subject: PREPA - Whitetish

This is the Whitefish Contract. They have a cost-plus concept in here. As a result, they have tried to correct that with the language below. Their issue is that they subcontract so
they need to be able to get paid to manage those subcontractors. Let me know whe best to talk to about this so I can help then provide guidance.

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT
Replace exiting language in Article 44 -with the following:

The Contractorshall submit to PREPA all contract costs -outside of Contractor's internal rates in Schedule 1, as updated per this Contract, on a time and materials basis. Such costs
shall be reasonable and customary and, for third paity contracts, include an allocation for Contractor's program management and oversight of such third party contracts. Costs
related to meals and lodging shall be the reasonable and actual costs incuired. [Nancy: there is a lot of cost incurred in the management of these, so we are struggling with possibly
offering this provision, but our intérpretation of various guidelines was that this may be a strict prohibition (Foed & Lodging ‘markup’)]

Nancy A. Mitchell
New York Co-Managing Sharcholder
Greenberg Traurig, LLP | MetLife Building

200 Park Avegue | New York. NY 10166
www.gtlaw.com

If you are not an intended recipient-of confidential and privileged information in this email, please delete it, notify us immediatély at postmaster@gtlaw.com, and do not use or
disseminate such information.
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Differences between the contract edited by PREPA’s attorneys and the final Oct. 17, 2017 Contract signed by PREPA and Whitefish

Article

Greenburg Traurig Draft

Oct 17, 2017 Contract

4.4

Breach By Contractor

PREPA may terminate contract if Whitefish breached
and failed to remedy the breach or make a good faith
effort to remedy the breach in 10 days.

PREPA may terminate contract with 5 days’ notice or
with immediate effect if Whitefish commits two or more
substantially similar breaches in a month.

PREPA has a right to seek damages from Whitefish for
any breach of the contract.

Omitted from final contract

7 Payment Payments
e Greenburg advised PREPA to justify the use of time and e No justification of time and materials pricing.
materials contracting by explaining why other methods
of pricing were not available. e Whitefish allowed to stop work if continuing work would
exceed the ceiling price.
e Greenburg also advised PREPA to place a ceiling price
into the rate schedule so that PREPA would not be e PREPA allowed to increase the ceiling price and Whitefish
obligated for payments above a certain amount. entitled to reimbursement for work done in excess of original
ceiling price if ceiling price is increased.
14 Termination for Cause Termination

PREPA can terminate contract for any breach by
Whitefish.

If contract terminated, Whitefish is not entitled to
compensation for expenses and costs related to
termination.

e PREPA can only terminate for “material breach” and must
give Whitefish 30 days to cure breach.

e  Whitefish “shall be compensated for actual, reasonable, and
necessary expenses” caused by any termination.
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e  Whitefish does not have right to terminate contract.

e Whitefish can terminate contract if PREPA makes a material
breach and fails to remedy in 10 days.

39 Puerto Rico Treasury Department Withholding Puerto Rico Treasury Department Withholding
e  Whitefish responsible for paying all Puerto Rican taxes e PREPA will reimburse “Whitefish for All amounts withheld
and will be “subject to required withholdings by PREPA. pursuant to this clause shall be reimbursed by PREPA to
[Whitefish]. [Whitefish] shall include any such
reimbursement request as a separate miscellaneous line item
on the applicable request for payment.”
o Unclear if this applies to all withholdings or the 1.5%
“special contribution to PREPA Net (PR’s internet
network)
51 Time and Materials Time and Materials
e Greenburg advised removing provision for time and e Labor rate schedules, attached to the contract assumed a 16
material billing because “All contract costs should have hour a day, 7 days a week work schedule.
pre-defined rates, even for time and materials” per e The hourly rales shall include wages, Indirect costs, general
FEMA contracting requirement and administrative expense, and profit.
65 Bonding Bonding
e  Whitefish required to hold a bond as the contract e Requirement removed from final contract
exceeded $150,000
70 Entire Agreement Entire Agreement

Greenburg did not include this section in its draft.

The terms and conditions contained herein constitute the entire
agreement between PREPA and the Contractor with respect to the
subject matter of this Contract, and supersede all communications,
negotiations, and agreements of the parties, whether written or oral,
other than these, made prior to the signing of this Contract.
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From:  Andy Techmansk: [

Sent: Tuesday, October 10, 2017 11:40 PM

To:  Ramon O Caldas Pagan [

Ce: 'Dykes, Melissa H. - Chief Financial Officer'

; Jonathan

Subject: Equipment Delayed at Jacksonville Port

Ramon,

We have over 100 pieces of equipment staged in Jacksonville, that has backed up to maximum threshold. The
shipping companies are creating hurdles in getting equipment approved for shipping that causes each piece of
equipment to take multiple days to get approved for shipping.

The shipping companies are requiring for each:

Insurance
Dimensions
Weights
Titles
Registrations
Driver Cards
Wash

Melissa,

Do you have any influence at the port with any of the shipping companies that we can expedite this process
and get our equipment onto ships sailing to PR?

Regards,
Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

www.whitefishenergy.com

PREPAO000607



Exhibit 14

From:  Andy Techmansk

Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 12:48 AM
To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan ;
Ce: Special Operations Team Jonathan Peltier

Ben Witson [

Subject: XGL FLights

Ramon,
We need your approval to ramp up the flights to Puerto Rico in order mohbilize as fast as we discussed this
morning. With over 100 pieces of equipment backed up at the Jacksonville port, flights are a much faster

solution. | would suggest that we increase at minimum 2-3 dedicated 110 ton planes to move more equipment
and get more bucket trucks working.

XGL do you have more 110 ton planes that can support us? IF so how quickly can you get additional aircraft
into rotation?

Regards,
Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

www.whitefishenergy.com

PREPAO000670
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From: Dykes, Melissa H. - Chief Financial Officer ||| GG

Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 2:46 AM

To: Andy Techmans: [

Ce: Ramon O Caldas Pagan
; Jonathan Peltier
. Michael Dyll
Subject: Re: Equipment Delayed at Jacksonville Port
Attach: OutlookEmoji-1505840638895 WHITEFISHENERGY Emailadat8e41-1da5-4534-

8b1a-fd7c90327f15.png

To clarify: is this list of information provided already but it is taking days to get it approved? Or are you
wanting to load cargo without some of the information listed?

On Oct 10, 2017, at 11:40 PM, Andy Techmanski wrote:

[External Email -~ Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from unknown
senders or unexpected email ]

Ramon,

We have over 100 pieces of equipment staged in Jacksonville, that has backed up to maximum
threshold. The shipping companies are creating hurdles in getting equipment approved for
shipping that causes each piece of equipment to take multiple days to get approved for shipping.

The shipping companies are requiring for each:

¢ Insurance

¢ Dimensions
¢ Weights

e Titles

e Registrations
e Driver Cards
e Wash

Melissa,

Do you have any influence at the port with any of the shipping companies that we can expedite
this process and get our equipment onto ships sailing to PR?
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

GROUP

From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8DAA1A3799E14154902472F15C80E198-
RAMON O CAL>

Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 1:00 AM

To: Andy Techmanski [

Ce: Special Operations Team : Jonathan Peltier
> Ben Wilson ; Nelson Morales
> GERARDO TARGA BENITEZ
>: Edgardo L. Rivera Alvarado
Subject: RE: XGL FLights
Hello Andy,

You are authorized to ramp up and continue using air cargo. We don't have time to waste. Only 15% of our clients have
electricity and now this situation put at risk the live, security and safety of more than 80% of our Island.

Also, the economy continued declining and the global pharma supply chain is at risk.
For all this reason we need to bring everything as soon as possible.
Regards,

R

From: Andy Techmanski
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 12:4/ AM

To: Ramon O Caldas Pagan; m

Cc: Special Operations Team; Jonathan Peltier; Ben Wiison

Subject: XGL FLights

Ramon,

We need your approval to ramp up the flights to Puerto Rico in order mobilize as fast as we discussed this morning.
With over 100 pieces of equipment backed up at the Jacksonville port, flights are a much faster solution. | would

suggest that we increase at minimum 2-3 dedicated 110 ton planes to move more equipment and get more bucket
trucks working.

XGL do you have more 110 ton planes that can support us? IF so how quickly can you get additional aircraft into
rotation?

Regards,
Andy Techmanski

CEO
Whitefish Energy Holdings, LLC

www.whitefishenergy.com
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